


Indisn= Evening Sagette, Monday, July 10, l9uu.

* Inspired to Write Favorite Songs by Samuel Willliams, Indiana's
ve From Kenfucky."

Grandfather of Harry MceClurkin

tsburgh's famous composer, Stephen Collins Foster, received the inspira-

te "Darling Nellie Cray," "0ld Dog Tray," "Jeannie with the Light
r," from Samusl Williams, a slave from Kentucky who escaped by the way
underzround route," to Indiana whose family still live here, Samuel Williams
rendfather of Harry MeClurkin of Indiana.

He was = gslave on a4 plantation in Kentucky and among the slaves on this planta~
tion was one lellie Gray who wes sold to a Louisiana plantation owner.

Sam missed his friend Nellie Grey and went to Loulsiana and stole her from her
nevw owner and brought her back to the plantation in Kentucky.

The Louisiana gentlemen came to claim her and made quite an ado about the situ-
ation--resulting in the mester of Sam Williams' beating him with a blacksnake whip
and putting out one of his eyes.

Nellie Gray was taken back to Louisiana only to be stolen again by Sum and
ht back to Kentucky. After this she was never to be heard of again, leaving
oW in Samls heart that he never forgot.

This time the whipping was again severe and Sam decided to run away to the
North, He arrived in Armagh where the father of the late Judge Harry White, Judge
Thomas Vhite, was aiding the slaves and giving them skhelter and food and hiding them
until they could get further on their wey. These Abolitionists had this underground
grapevine from the South into Cenada. One hiding place was the 0ld Stone House on
the White property, north of Infiana. When Sam ran away he took two women slaves
with him and in escaping, swam the Potomac river with them on his back. He decided
to locate in Indiens and worked for wvarious families. He married Sidney Harvey,

an Indians-born Negrees and lived in a house across from where the DeGaetano (lemners

now stands,

He was coployed at times by Attorney William Stewart, who resided on the sight
of the Mancs Theater.

n Tost ted 3 . {7 to g t
;_ 3s,erlgi§i gd this Eogimesﬂe was rsla ?ge Mrg. Stewart and made a

\_) S
habit ék*ﬁeuz_; %o ans seversa 8 year. Wa on his visits here he heard
Sem Willi=ms singing his ballads as he worked. He had a beautiful voice and with
a giit of composing the mnsic and words as he went along, Sam Williams interested
Stephen Fostsr
Uns of Szm's songs was thut of his lost love, Nellie Gray, Another of a pet
dog, "Iray," which was left behind on the plantation, and still another of Jeannie

with the Dark Brown Hair. As Sam sung it, Foster became s§0 inspired with
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iDIANA PROCRESS and Grandson

of nonwritten histaory during slavery. The
 in This County--Slaves were sheltered in
Sivil War--A Well-orgenized company.

4

.8 i the preparion of a paper upon American
fﬁuaeut=a gesrch fo* sabjacu matter for her paper, she found
ference fto the underground railroad and that it crossed the
FPanngylvania and had & lins passing through Indiana county.

irﬂu*“j was & natural one. What was 1t? wa *%Fa reality? Did
ny have an existence, or was it a name, a mnyth? We shall give but
“aﬁ&tiQn %0 the readsrs of the PROGRESS in.thiy preface chapter,
» in the nesr futurs some of the incidéiits, accidents, and
who traveled wis this mysterious route, and the dangers connecied
ont, es well as theaccommodations afforded those who were carried

on this lin%.

0% wish you for a mgment to think that this underground route was
furnighed with rolling stock, splendid passenger cars with parlor

th finely furnished Pullman sleeping cars, nor with dinipg cars

ntive porters resdy %o taks your orders furnishing you all the

"vs of the season. Neither did this company own fine union stations

ni: hesutiful waiting rooms, nor did it“have a well ballasted track .

with thr of steel, nor powerful engines whose very appearance '

sads
the :&areler with confidence that they can carry him safely to his

ion. s were no zgents who were willing to insure the lives of
Sengers againgt accident or death. Those who took pagsage on this

ms 17 counted well the risk they were running, but when they stepped
they csught from God's free air that same spirit of true manhood that
that eminent American siatesman to say: Y“Give me liberty or give ms

Of course the undsrground railroad in e certain sense was mystical, but
that such sn orzanization or compeny had existence for many years is a fact,
3 srgong travelled over this route. It was a through route from the
lzve states %0 Carada. (One of the distinguighing features was that
re only for & through trip.

rganizaition and purpose of the company was to ald in carrying poor,
appressed African slave from bondage to the land of liberty, which was, ai

4 mg, Caned It wasg composed of persons who were in sympathy with the
grs were located in all the border southern states and in
states to the Cerada line. They were sworn and pledged




1833 end continued in active operation umntil

gLl tc 1850 this company carried quite a

nd. freedom through Indiane county, but after the

ylaves on the banks of Twolick, near Diamondville, in
wnghip, this was considered a2 hazardous route. After

throvgh this county except in cases of extreme necessity.

5 who was known as a conductor and secretly conducted
1wother conductor took charge of him, This system was
in Canada and under the protection of the 0ld Dominion.
ik from one to another of the different conductors who
ives until it was finally reported to the conductor

e glave. 'The runs were not regular nor always an

» the reason that men could not always be found who wers
Some of the "runs" were necessarily long and fast

g -4
et
hirs

! : m by the conductors only, as well as its "all is well."” Sometimes
g train was overloadsd and it was necessary for part of the passengers to
7 pntil the next frain.

X put: safely in the care of;}&s,next conductor before
the day . our well regulated railroad Cofipanies have "track
who prscsde the trains to se= that there are no obstructions on the
¢ would interferse with the coming train. So had “the underground road,
s advance guides to ascertain if Pall is well.® This was very necessary
e nighte it wes not safe for the train to move. This road had its "danger

tion nearest the Indians county line was Johnstown. The following
of some of the principal stations, conductors andafficerg in this
Two east of Blairsville, conductors, Graff, Palmer and Thomms; between
Bl ick and Graceton, conductor, Simpson; near Homer City, on the west sgide,
Hon. Jogeph Campbell; on the banks of Yellow Creek, near the Guthrie farm,
conductor, Andrew Dicksonm, (the danger signal at this station is still standing);
ndians station was amongst the tombstones in the "old graveyard” near the
£ the late Judze Clark, conductors and officers, James Moorhead,
editor of the CLARION OF FREEDOM, Benry Hall, Esqg., John B. Allison, Esq., David
Myers, ¥Tsq., Dr. Bobert Mitchell and James Hamilton, Esq.; north of Indians.at
i near the farm occupied by T. St. Clair Thompson, conductors, Robert Thompson
ng; near Marion Center, conductors, Work and Vanlear; on Cush Cushion
onductors were George Atchlson and Gamble.

fe bheve now given the stations to the Cleerfield county line. That good
old sturdy Irishman, George Atchison, after a thrilling experience with a body

of catel ' accompanied by their bloodhounds, by his shrewd cunning
dre ds the track, remarking: "They may bate us in supreme court,
b on the Cush Gushion.” In some future chapter we shall

the close pursuit to which he (Atchison) had reference.

, g arrived at the Indiana station an advance agent was
L?’vrcv uLfica‘ givipg notice of thelr arrival, they were then
o some one of the conductors, who would select his assistants, and
1 ut the next station. In connection with the station at Indiana
hel gubsistence department to furnish food and ¢lothing and disburse
the sams. Scmetimes this wes a heavy tax on the memhers, for as a rule its
l were of "God's own poor."




i & gafe reating plsce for the weary and footsore

uged by the fugitives. It required great
y» their 7a_ta without attracting the attention
or arrest them for the reward, or bescause "they

ibuts to the memory of a man whe was not known pub-
, friend of the oppressed, who was one of the most wvaluable
&8 n%s in conveyi -_: food and olothing to the unfortunate ones. He wasg
a hunter and fond 0‘: the field and in fthe moeraing would start out with his
wn and large geme bag, but if the laitter hed been examined, often there

_)l

:;ou_l.:':; have been ...J’u.f: in 1% gufficient food to feed a half dogen hungry people.

; other times this convenient receptascle would contain several pairs of shoes
or a lot of second hand clothing. This noble man was Charles Slaysman, who
will be remembered by =ome of our older citizems., In thinking of this braves,
noble-hesrted man, we remember that He who was the friemd of the poor and
gppreansed, said: "Inasmuch as ye did it to the least of these, ye did it unto
me. "

The late Joseph R, Smith, Esq., former editor ¢f the Indiana MESSFNGER,

wag cne of the undsrground railroad company's most valuable members. Hs was

a econgtable of Indiana borough and at that period there was a large amount
mgingss transacted that czused him to traverse the county frequently.
Bvery person lmew J. R, Smith and his white horse. It was often necessary
that information be sent immediately to the different stations and conductors
of the underground lins. Mr. Smith always responded, it mattered not at all
wnat hour of the night, or how severe storms. Those who did not know of his
errand supposed he was serving a subpoena or executing a writ. No one member
did more effsctive service than he. He was a kind-hearted man, a friend of
the poor asnd distressed. There are many living yet who did not belong te
the colered race who remember hig kind acts.

‘/,be:e were a pumbsr 0f ladies in Indiana and vicinity who, wers quiet
contributors to the "subsistence department.” Their contributions were kept
gecret, owing to the unpopularity of what was siyled the "abolition movement,®
fearing it would affect their lmsbands' business. Wo mention a few of these
noble christian women: Mrs, Daniel Standerd, Mrs. James and Mrs. John Sutton,
Mra. Judge Thomsa Vhite, Mrs. Rev. David Blair, Mrs. Isaac M. Watts, and
Migs Mary Rutherford. There were others that we will refer to in connection
" with incidents that will be given., In this connection we will speak of the
family of the late David Myers.

¥r. Myers bea been referred to &8 a conductor. He was an ardent friend
of the slaves and brave as & lion in their defence. He believed that God
created 21l men frae and equal. Hig wife was Jjust as loyal and devoted to

the couse f the opprescsed as her husband. Upon one cccassion when a

nunber of esceping ones were passing over the line and their pursuers close
after t‘;=.-:~m, Mrs. Myers veluntsered to furnish the bread for the party, which
sguired her to bake, as there were seven hungry men to be pravided for for

g, bub she was equal to the emergency, filling her cut-over with
od. r.:;-J .esome bread. Word was brought to the station that the pursuers
s near at hand and the conductor arrived at the Myers home some hours in
ivance of the time zzreed upon. The bread was still in the oven when the
arty arrived, This kind-hearted lady had in addition prepared a substantial
meal for the egcaping ones, which they immediately proceeded to eat, when ths
resr zusrd eppeared and informed the conductor that the pursuers were near
gt band. The bresd was hastily taken from the oven. While the closeneas of
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'a was alarming, their hunger rendered them indifferent to their
1t became necessary for the conductor to drive them from the
They were then tuken to the bake oven, where the warm bread

was given to them. It was amuging to watch them toss the warm loaves from
hand to hend on account of their being uncomfortably hot. One colored gentle-

man opaning his shirt front stowed away two of the large loaves of bread.

t ®2s but a minute until he commenced to emscute a lively dance, crying out,

"0 lorddy, 10"ddy.“ The conductor, in commanding tope, said, "March, haste."

1% wag close connection. When the party left the Myers home, now the Hill

Dairy farm, now owned by George Row, Esg., the slave hunters were ascending the
Ricder hill in close pursuif, not over a half-mile distant. The conductor ran
on double quick time, covered by two rear guerds. The member of the guard
pearest to the pursuers heaﬁing the noise of their horsest! feet, at 2 Tfavorable
bend in the road walked back to mest the glave catchers. He was carrying a common
grain rake, and, supposing him to be a fdrmer boy returning from his work, they
esked him if he met any one on the road. He replisd’ P&t he bhad met some six

or eight fellows mnd thought some were niggers, and wondered whers they were
going. One of the southerners replied:; "To hell!" Tpr asked how long since
he met them. He replied, "About a balf an hour ago. “»»They then asked if he
would not walk back with thHem and show them which way they went. The farmer

boy didn't want t¢ 2o, belng tired working all day, but finally upon their
sgreeing to give him fifty cents, he congented to go back to the place he met
them, which he did, putting them on the left hand road, whilst the conductor and
his charge passed safely on to the right.

The act of another noble lady is recalled. The writer was sent forward
gg an advence guard snd to have food at a certain point, but more especially
for a pair of shoes for a poor slave mother who had carried her babe in her
armg from Virginia. Her ghoes were naturally worn out. She was footsorse and
could be tracked by her bleeding feet. When the slave's condition was related
%o this women she clasped her own bube in her arms and exclaimed, "Ch, my God,
how long shall thie be? Help, Lord!" Stooping down she unloosed her own shoes
and gave them to me for the slave mother. We then told her that her shoes
would not be of any uss &s they were not the right size and producing the measure
of the slave mother's shoe, the woman compared it with her husbands shoes and
found. they were just the gize. Knowing the family to be in limited circumstances,
she was asked what she would do for shoes. She replied, "The Lord will provide.
True, we are poor, but think of that poor mother and child lying out at night.®
When bidding her a hasty good night she said "Wait a moment. I must do some~
thing for the child® and going to her bed took from it one of the quilts saying,
"Give this to the mother. It will ksep the babe warm at night." She them told
;0 £o quickly for she knew where I had to meet her busband, I hurriedly

v
t
left the humble homwe and when but a few steps from the house heard her singing

There were some things connected with this organization that were interesting
and exciting, such as hairbreadth essapes and alarms, The most interesting
mestinga were held when the reportis were received of the safe landing of slaves
in Canads. Most of the persons vho attended the meetings were strong minded,
noble men who had pledged their lives and their all for those who had comparatively
few riends in the norfhern states at this time. Among them were some born poets

o prepared thrilling, interssiting and exciting songs for the different occasions.
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on the Underground Railway. ¥Filight of
m~-g5 wild tramp north, Brough to Indians
aliered and Fed along Twolick Creek.

1 8y took passags on the underground railwey in Virginia, early
onth of September, 1844, landing at the Indiana station on the 28th
Jctober, Two of them, Charles Brown and Garret Harris, belongzed to Mr. Van
er was Anthony Hollinsworth. Charlie had been raiged on the
tation. His mester and mistress were kind to their slaves,
their wants, feeding and clothing them well, and nursing them
ime that they were sick,

+ ©

Charlie wag & house servant. Hs had charge of the family carriage and did
; of the marketing. He was & favorite in the family and was the household
. Being naturally bright, the iiss Van Meteers taught him "his letters"

to spell in two syllables. It was amusement to them ss they played country
school, Both teachers and pupil enjoyed it, and the pupil was making rapid
progress--g0 much so that ons dsy when & gentleman from a neighboring plantation
was visiting them he was called to the schoolroom "to hear how well the darkie
could spell.® The neighbor informed them that 1t was ¢ontrary to law to teach
2 "nigger" to resad and that he would see their fether about it. The next morm-
ingz their father told ths girls that they must not give Charlie any more lessons
in spelling. The girls wantsd to know why. They thought it would make him
brighter and more useful. The father replied that personally he did not object
and did no®t think it wrong to teach them to read except that with them it might
make them discontented, for they would find out some things slaves ought not

to know; that it was contrary to law and they must stop right there.

v

The slave, #8 a r™le, was an eavesdropper, ligtening and trying to hear

whatever their masters and misiresses did not wish them o hear. Charlie wasg

d behind the curtein and heard the conversation between the father and daunghters.
curicsity was excited and he wondered what the things were that "slaves

uld not kpow.”" He reporited at his regular time for his lessons, but the

young ladies said it wes not convenient to hear him recite. He continued to

sk when they would hear him "gpell again." At last they informed him when they

wanted to hesr him they would send for him, He was never called into the schaol-

voom again. Before that time he was not interested in his lessons. The only

pleasure he had was the praise of his young mistresses for being a smart boy.

He bad no desirs for an education.

* hearing the conversation of his master with the young ladies
1 to temch him to read,; he was desirous to be able to read to find
nossible, what it was lht slave should not know and that wovld make
contented. He was sbout 16 years of age when this occurred and from that

be took passage on ths underground railway he never let an opportunity
: moxre about his condition pass by and tried hard to learn to read.
iz own glave mother would becdme impatient with him when she would find him

‘h a stray leaf of a book or a Dit of newspaper sitiing before the fire or in
{ i ¢ to 'spell out the words." ©She said it was not good for a

3 learn to read, and that she never knew one thai could read that was
wuflegs nig," and that they were "shore to be sol'! down to the Indigo
plantashun, " which was a terror to Virginia darkies.

o
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;hat his master was & kind one.

Ag has besen stmuted, Charlie slways insist:d
He did not punigh severely, but if any of his :l:ves became troublesome he
simply sold them away south. He also obssrvsd that sometimes he sold hig best
glaves if the crops were short. He never psrif.d wmsband and wife, but when a
slave boy or girl arrived at the age when %hay wcre valuable & slave dealer
would come and talke one or two of them away. e Turther obgerved that he would
have them taken away when the mistress was not ai home.

@ day when he was driving his mistress “ona from market, as they Came
near %o the mangion of the Van Meteer farm the; pat a slave driver coming from
their home with two of their slaves manacled tigether. Ag they saw their mis-
tress they cried out, "Oh, missus, save ua! wme will be good!* %Oh, missus,
gave us ! we will die for you!" She stopped 2e: ¢ yrriage and asked the trader
what it meant. What was he doing vith her "bois'? He replied, "They are mine;
I bovght them a week ago," and started on. Th:y ijcreamed again and the dealer
commanded them to stop that noise, Not doizz :0 1s soon as he desired he
struck them with his slave whip, saying, "If yia 7on't keep quiet I'll give you

gomething to howl for."

Cherlie s&id as he was driving his mistre:s
if her heart would break, saying, "My poor Zoy: M
replied, "Poor boy! you may be the next." Ha iest
be if he could help it. This occurred about 2as
then raesolved that he would "run away."

iome she would cry and sob as
He tried to comfort her. She

;rmined¥then that he would not

rear hefore his sscape, bui he

But how, when, and where to? All things come to pass, he would make 2n
effort. He believed that if he had been & field hand he would not have thought
of freedom, but beinz in the mansion and hearinzg words dropped that were not
intended for hisg ear created such a desire for libsrty that nothing but death
would have prevented his attaining it.

He spent all his spare time planning and studying, using what limited kmnow-
ledge he had picked up by listening to conversations of white people when they
vigited at the Van Meiser home. Upon one occasion a relative of his mistraess
visited them and he heard bim relate the escape of five slaves from an adjoin-

ing county. FHis mistress msked bow it could De possible for these slaves to

get awey end how they would know where to g0. He replied that it was believed
that there wers some perscns bound together o l1e.p them away. She asked how
and he replied that he did not kuow, but he hac nt doubt that some one gave them

the start and explained to them about the norik s
0f the Miss Van Meteers who was present rems ko
slave was like the Star of Bethlehem to the wice

ar leading to liberty. One
hat the north star to the
en of the east.

After Charlie got this informution he would
nights and go ont among the slaves to see if he could not get someone to join
him in hunting for the north star. Thig was kept up for some time. After
great persuasion he succeeded in getting the desire for liberty kindled in the
hearts of some., They held frequent meetings ir a secluded spot in the forest,
always on & Saturday night., Their ideas were very indefinite; they had no plan,
nor did they know where to start for. But one night after the little meeting
edjourned and Charlis was on his way back to the.mansion he was startled by
some one stepping out from the thick brush to the path and raising a club said,
"Stop dar.” He was so frightened that he could not run away. The stranger said,
“I'ge found you out, orn'ry nigger. I know what you's up to. You's tryin®! to
run away from yore massa." Charlie denisd it, s&ylng he had been setting his

eave the mansion Saturdasy
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traps and was on his way home. The stranger told him he was lying; that
he had listened while he was ftalking to the other darkiss. Charlie again
denied it whereupon the siranger said, "You lyin' nigger, I heard you,"
gnd then told him what he said to the others. Charlie was very much
alarmed. He thought it was all up with him and that they would alil be sold
down south. At laat the man said, "What are you goin' to do? TYou want to
run away but you den't kmow whar to go to. I's semt to tell you whar."
(harlis then attempted to go to him, but was stopped with, "You mmet not
coms any nearer me. I'll meet you at this rock next Saturday night. If

I don't coms out %o yom, give the 'hoo! hoo! of the owl and then listen.
if you hear it three times wait, but if you heer the whip-poor-will go on;
o not stop.”

After that these two had many meetings ai thls trysting place. The
octher slaves never met the stranger and were never present when the plans
ware being perfected. They agreed upon & night to start and the journey
wopld begin at that rock. The mysterious siranger was t0 go before and they
were to follow, listening for the ery of the owl. They were to reply, but
not too frequently, but if the whip-poor-will would call they must scatter
and bids,

With much fear they started. There were six in all but after traveling
about three miles thres "nc !count darkies," as Charlie called them, turned
back.  Affer traveling, as he thought, about 15 miles it came near morning
and the "heo! hoo !" became more distinct and more frequent. At last they
came up to their strange leader in a secluded spot, who inquired what had
beceme of the other three. Whell they %0ld him he gave a low whistle and s
white man came out of the forest. The leader said, "All's well.”

During the mestings Charlie believed it was a colored man who was lead-
ing them, but when they changed clothing the old guide became a whiis gentle-
an and the new white gulde became a darkey. After a few minutes! whigper-
ing the first gulde raised his hand towards heaven saying, “The Lord keep,"
snd then standing for = moment turned to the new guide and said, "Haste,
marech 1

| =3

}.v

The trip was a successful one, with few detentions, and they landed at
the Indiana station, where they were secreted, fed and rested 0 prepare
them for their future journey.

At a meeting of the underground railroad company here one of the members
suggested that 4t was not necessary for them to continue the long and weari-
some Jjournsy 4o Victoria land; that he could hide them in a safa retreat in
his pine forests and they would be secure. This was opposed sirenuocusly by
many of the members buft finally it was agreed that they should ga to this "pine
fastness® for the time. They were then piloted out to the pine forest of
Dr. Mitchell, on the banks of the Twolick, about 10 miles from indiana, near
the old state road and nesr where the irom bridge now spans the cresk, This
was & mistake both for the slaves and their friends as will be discovered in
a future chapter. At this rude home of theirs occurred a scere in kidnapping
slaves that thrilled the citizens of Indiana county.

(In the former chapter & slight mistake was made. 'The firs¢ names of
Megsrs. Ewing, Thompason and Hall, members of the underground railroad company,
gshould have read, John, Samuel, and Andrew C., respectively.)
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“In Days of Slavery" Interesting Ilocal History Bsfore The Civil War. A
Tugitive Slave Kidnepped by his mastier nesr Indiane~~Exciting Trial in the
Court Leads o his freedom. Official Court Records of the Famous Case.

A% the close of the lzast chapter some of the incidents conngcted with
the capture of Charlie Brown on the banks of the Twolick were promised.
Before proceeding to the narration of the kidnapping, ia Green township, on
that tragic morning, I will give an account of the arrival in Indiana of the

e

One evening about the middle of April, shortly after dark, the writer
and two other boys were in the CIARION OF FREEDOM printing office, when a young
colored man ceme into the office. His appearance led me to think that he was
a runaway, and as he was disgposed to enter into conversation and was a bold
and forward negro, I was afraid he might "give himself awey,® therefore I charged
him with being a runaway, which he stoutly denied. He was not eagily alarmed,
but the leonger he remained with us, the more was I convinced that he was an
sscuping slave. I waitched for an opporiunity %c give him a sign, which he
recognized, and soon left the office. The other three boys left in a few
minutes 'after. The lights were extinguished and it was not long until the
“taps" that were understood were given. The door opened and the colored man,
whom we will now introduce to you as Charlie Brown, entered, There was some—
thing about Charlie's appearance that was attractive. He was about five feet,
10 inches in height, straight as an arrow, full-breasted, a clear, bright eye,
derk-skinned; his hair had the regular African crinkle, and there was some-
thing thaet was very pleasing and winning. He had a merry, cunning twinkle in
his eye, and when he smiled showed a row of ivories that would have been envied
by any of cur bemutiful ladies that practice the bewitching smiles that show
their peerly teeth. Charlie msgnetized me at our first meeting.

I chided him for his boldness in coming into the office so early in the
evening, especially when he could sse through the window that there were so
many in, and asked why hs had done so. He replied, "I knowd I was at de right
place by de signs, and when I seed through de window that you'ns was 2ll boys
I wasn'!t afraid. I tcld him there were three of us boys. "Well, I looked
you all ober and if you'ns had made me any trouble I*d hab taken two ob you
by de neck and thumped de odder one t1ll you’d hab kept bery quiet, and den
wa'se 20 hungry.® It must be remembered that they had rested all that day
in the old graveyard near the residence of the late Judge Silas M. Clark,
smong the tombstones, secreted by the brush, without anything to eat.

Charlie then wenit back to their hiding place and brought his iwo companions
with bim %o the CLARION OFFICE. The poor fellows were cold and hungry. I ¢
ghall never forget thelr supper that evening. The Associate Presbyterian
(now United Presbyterian) Synod was in session here at that time in the old
Ssceder church, and being desirous to close up their bueiness so that the
members of the Synod from a distance could take the hack in the morning for
Blairsville to connect with the line of boats that ran between Philadelphia
and Pittsburg, they continued the afternoon session without adjournment, order-
ing in the tallow dips for light. The Rev. Dr. Rodgers, a dignified Scotch
divine, of Pittsburg, was the guest of the editor of the CLARION and when the



12,

Doctor and the editor returned, not having had their supper, they were informed
of the arrival of the three fugitives. The three hungry slaves were seated at
the table aga’nst the wishes of the editor's wife, who did not think it proper
for the travelstained derlkies tc eat with the minister, but the editor ingisted
and all wers finally sested together at the table in the cozy little dining-
room. It wis & group for the artist's pencil. Contrast the dignified and
porély Scoich divine, clothed in his black broadecloth, with his spotless white
neclktie, nnd 2dding more to his commending appearance, were his golden-rimmed
glasses; immediately opposite him sat the three glaves, ragged, dirty and

£11%thy: ot the head of the table sat the editor. His eyes told of the joy end
f?iégﬁe‘s; ttt gSave him to feed those poor, oppressed omes for whom Christ Xied

as well is they of the more favored race, and ministering to their wants,

did so telieving he was obeying the request of Him who is the friend of
humanity and of these ssble-colored onmes; ignorant and degraded as they might
be, they were still human beings. After the divine blessing was invoked the
fun coumenced. The colored men were too hungry to observe the rules of table
etigustte. Knives and forks were ignorsd by them. There was but one effort
on thoir part—to gel everything that would satisfy bunger into their mouths
in ths shortest and guickest manner possible. It was amusing to watch the
editnr's wife in her efforts to keep the table supplied with food. The supper
endzd but not beforse the food was all exhsusted. The poor fellows were very
tired. A temporary sleeping place was provided for them and they soon forgot
their gorrows in sleep.

_ The officeré of the underground railway company met and toock théir case
nider consideration. All that was done that night was to provide food for the
ruxt day and a person to take them to the hlding-place. ;

The next morning business wag conducted in its usual manner in the little
inti-slavery office although some strange things had occurred the preceding
aight. The committee appointed to procure subsistence found willing coniri-
butors. The late Jonsthan S. Agey, furnished a liberal supply of bacon that
wag highly appreciated by the hungry fugitives; the late John B. Allison, Esq.,
coniributed & sack of flour, not a one-fourth barrel sack such as we now have
but one of the o0ld "long Johns.” A kind lady on Water street who was always
too modest to have her name mentioned did the baking. Among the most generous
contributors was Mrs, William Houston. ©GShe was the true type of the christiam
woman, not "letting the left hand kmow what the right doeth" by not letting
William know what she did for the poor and oppressed. It was not beceunse ber
husband was not in sympathy with the slave, but to shield him from the penalties
of the Fugitive Slave Law,

After the glaves were rested and some of their wants supplied, they were
gent to the farm of Dr. Mitchell, in Green township. Josiah Shields, Esgq.,
was the Doctor's tenant and lived in what was known as the stone house, and
looked after hisg real estate in that neighborhood. Dr. Mitchell sent a2 note
to his tenant, requesting him to let the slaves occupy the cabin across the
creek, to furnish them with bedding and cooking utensils, to aid them in
procuring food and to put them to work. It was not intended that this should
be thelr permsment stopping place, the majority of the members of the under-
zround railroed company being fearful of the safely of the simves here. At
one meeting, Mr. John Graff said it was not wise to bave so many in onme place,
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ggpecially in a country district where there were no colored people; and that
it would attract attention and would result, he feared; in their cspture. It
wae then decided $o divide them, which resulted in Anthony Hollingsworthisg
securing employment with James Simpson; near what was then kmown as Phillips
Mills, pow Homer City, where he was esmployed for some time,

In the Month of June following, Garret Van Meteer, owner of Anthony,
accomparied by two slave-caichers, Msssrs. Cunninghem and Tilden, srrived at
the Simpscn farm and captured Anthony. He was brought to Indians on & horse,

& fetter on each ankle connected by a rope like a girth under the body of the
horge makins it impossible for him to dismount. The party with their captured
gslave came to the Indiana House, which was ownad and conducted by David Ralston,
gheriff of the county. They arrived in the evening before dark on "Tusaday of
the court,” It was the custom for a large number of citizens of the county

%0 be preszeant that day and quiise an excitement was raised when the pariy
arrived with the prisoner. The question went from one to another, "What crime
ig he guilty of?" "Is he a horse thief, a counterfeiter, or a murderer?" When
the answer was given that he wes not guilty of any of these crimes, only trying
for liberty, the excitement became intense. It was a red letter day for the
Abolitionists, 'This wae un example of the workings of American slavery.

Thoge who in the past had favored slavery and others who were indifferent on
the subject were aroused and it seemed at times as though the quiet town of
indiaps would riot. Fhilsdalphia end South Sixth streets were packed solid
with excited men. They shouted, "We want the kidnsppers." Sheriff Ralston
appeered on the scene and attempted to speak, saying, "Gentlemen, I know nothing
about this affair but this gentlemen, Mr. Van Meteer, says that this here is
hig glave and that he has the right by law to his property. He has placed him-
self and his slave under my protection as an officer of the law and it is my
duty to protect him. If this ig not correct this case can be investizated;

but his rights must De protected and I, as sheriff of the county, will zee thai
they are.” Althovgh one of the most popular men in Indiana county, he was
interrupted frequently with jeers and hisses. He ordered the crowd to disperse
but they paid no attention to the command. The excitement and crowd only
increased. The starfing news had gone to the couniry and excited men could

be seen coming in on horseback on all the principal streets. Acts of violence
were threstened. Many persong who had ne ver been regarded as friends of the
slave were loudest in their denunclation upon this outrag:s on humanity, forget-
ting that Mr. Van Meieer was only attempting to obtain what the law of ihs
United States had graranteed to him. But the workings of the system of
American slavery haed never been presented to the good, honest, Scoich-Irish
citigens of Indiapa county 23 it now appeared to them, and they would not
suffer it to be so, law or no law. After it grew dark (at that time Indians
did not havyr any artifical 1light| on her streets) all kinds of sensational
stories wers told of attempts to spirit the slave away, but he was gtill in

the Indizns House on the second floor, bound and guarded by the slavecaitchers
and his msster, Mr. Van Meteer.

The sheriff becams alarmed &t the condition of affairs, The slave was
in his bhouse and he well knew thrt any attempt on his part to take the prisoner
©o jall would mean blood-shed and the taking of the prisoner from him. The
sheriff asked for g conference with the leaders of the anti-glavery pariy.
Dr. Robert WMitchell and James Moorhead, editox of the CLARION, were appointed
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0 meet with them and were immediately conductsd by  Sheriff Ralston to the room
where ths thrse msn guarded the trembling fugitive. The excited crowd were not
going to taks eny risksy and filed into the main hall below until it was packed
full of men., The conference lansted for some time and Just at its close the

crowd below thought they heserd some copfusion upstairs and immediately commenced
to ascend the mein stairwsy. Sheriff Ralston, who straightway left the room to

ascertain the cause of the noise, rsturned, saying, "The crowd is coming; there
will be trouble." Rditor Moorhead replied, "Come in and close the door and I
will meet them.?

He atarfesd hastily and met the determined crowd on the first landing, say-
ing, "Go baeck men, it ig 21l satisfactorily arranged until morning." But sowme
of the more exzcited onss persisted in pushing their way past him, erying, ‘We
wani 0 see if the slave is there.? He planted himself before them and said:
“Friends, do not act vnwisely; do not do anything that you will regret after-
wards, We huave the assurance that the slave shall remain in his room until
the morning, und we have promised that they shall not be disturbed during the
night; that we will place & guard around the house and if any attempt to remove
the sluve is discovered we will not be responsible for the consequences.® It
did seem for =z time as if the excited men could not be kept back, when he said,
"Men you can pass me only by tramping over my body. Go back. We will come out
victorious if you act wigely." The inquiry was, "Howt"™ His reply. "He that
ig for ue is gtronger than they that are ageinst us. Be persuaded. It may be
on the morrow we will have to battle for the right. Mseke your guard line sirong
and wait for the morning." The crowd listened to his pleadings, but still there
were low whigperings thal were alarming. Dr. Robert Mitchell in the meantime had
come to the landing on the stairway, where the crowdwme attempiing to pass, and
by & persussive power with which he was singularly gifted, succeeded in quieting
the people, zssuring them that all had been arranged, and he had no doubt but
that the sleave would be liberated in the morning. But vigilant watchers surrounded
the hovse all night.

The friends of Anthony were not lnasctive during the night. After the
picket lines had been mede secure they met to confer. "What shall be done?® j
wag the first question asked, to which a member immediately replied, “Ask God,'
Several years afterward a gentleman teld me that when he heard the reply he was
disgusted. He thought it was a time for action, not for prayer, but #when the
0ld man that was called on to ask God presented his petitions to heaven it
impressed him in such a manner he could not forget it. It was the turning
point in his life, as he had been a reckless man before that.

It wag declded to follow the advice of a reliable attorney of the Indiana
Bar, William »«nke, to =gk the protsction of the law, Dr. Robert Mitchell wes
chosan %0 apply for & writ of habeas corpus, and William Banks to present the
petition to court. The time appointed for the hearing was the next morning

V/The next morning the late Hon. Thomas White, father of our present judge,
Herry White, took his seat at the bench to hear the case. Thomas White was one
of the most dignified and plessant judges of Pennsylvania. The old Court House
was packed to 1ts utmost capacity. Inside the bar -on one side was Augustus
Drumm, Esq., attornsy for Robert G. Tilden; Anthony Hollingsworth, in the custody
of the sheriff; Mr. Garret Van Meteer, and the other slavecatcher, Cunninghem,

On the cother side was Willisam Banks, Esg., and Dr. Robert Mitchell, supported
by his co~laborers in the cause of the oppressed.
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Attorasy Banks presented the petition in a quief and dignified manner and
ruigsed his point, asking for the evidence of the existence of American glavery
in Virginie uandsr the comstitution of the United States. In the absence of the

proof he asksd that the petition be heard.
Judge White, after carefully considering the case, granted the prayer of

the petitioner. Hs directed the sheriff to release the men from custody. Then
the pent-up sxcitement of the hour burst cut. The men cheered and the ladiss
vaved their handkerchisfs. The judge called on the officers of the court to
preserve order. The veteran editor of the CLARION hastily left the court room
and standing on the top step in front of the building, taking off his hat called
out, “Shout ! the Lord bids you shout i" and such a prolonged cheer was never
before heard on the quiet streets of Indiana.

A score of young men led by Richard and Alexander White and Robert Mitchell
were standinz outside ready to recsive Anthony when the sheriff would bring him
to the door. He was given a warm reception. The young men placed him on their
shoulders and paraded the strests. Anthony was taken that evening to the cabin
on the Mitchsll estate and the three fugitives were together cnce again.

"Down South again® 4 Dask of a Slave Leads to his capture. After a Taste of
Liberty He Ventures Back to (0ld Virginim to Ses a Sweetheart and is Held a
Prisoner on Gthe Qld Plantation--Esceped Again and Arrives Here Footsore and
Starved.

This same Charlie who was the principal character in the last chapter, had
not yet understood fully the power of love-~what one would do and dare once they
were enslaved by love--in fact, I think his burning desire for liberty caused
him to forget the arrow lodged in his heart by Cupid sent on its love mission
by a dark-eyed beauty on the o0ld plantation. But his heart was wounded and
plessant and sweet as was his new found liberty, he learned, as people in all
ages and conditions have learned, that the wound would not heal until he had
gained the object of his affection. In a word, Charlie was in love with a
dusky maidsn on his master's plantation. He concluded that he would go back
to "ole Virginia® and bring his love to grace his humble home on the banks of
the Twolick.

Chaerlie sentioned this to the writer, who tried to discourage him pointing
out the dangers: He would likely be captured and if so would be sold eway
down south. Jut Cherlie was persistent and thought he could meke the trip
safely, havinz fraveled over the line once. All efforts to dissumde him from
hig purpose were fruitless. Like many others when in love he saw no obstacle
in the way. The only object he could see was Dinah walting for him. He talked
to me ssveral ftimes during the summer before starting. Once he came zand informed
me thet he would start soon, "while the co'n was in de roastin! ear." 1 said
to him, "Cherlie you are foolish. Forget that southern girl and love another.¥
Hig reply was "You hab nevaw lubbed as I lub or you wouldn't say dat.®
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Well, Cherlie started on his dungerous journey and succeeided even bsiter
than he expected. He had journeyed within 30 miles of the old plantation when
he was errested. He told his captors a very plausible story: he had run away
from Master Van Meteer, but it was "better to be a slave with massa dan a free
nigger in de norf."™ He was put in jail and his master sent for, who, when he
cams, was much surpriced %o find his Charlie. He again told the same story
told those who apprehended him. He said, "I am bery sorry I runned away; I don't
like de norf =5 well as de ole plantashun." He asked his master to firgive him
and promised to be a good boy, saying that he did not want any more liberty.
Mr. Ven Meteer toolk him home, treated him kindly, did not punish him, dbut took
him to the attic and put fetters on his ankles, fastening him with a chain toa
ring in the floor.

The second day of Charlie's confinement the slave dealer that had often
been there hefore came S0 zee him, After making him walk back and forward the
lengith of the chain he went out with his master. Charlie kmew what that
meant-~ne was sold. The boy became almost wild, walking to and fro the lengih
of his ehain., 4% lagt he sat down to think. He was discouraged and disheartened
and had not seen his lady love. While brooding cver the situation he discovered
among some rubbish an old cast-away "drawing knife," a fortunate find for him.
He used it as a saw to sever the chain close to the manacles then to saw the
linlk that connected them. He was now free, but a bracelet remained on each
anltle., 'The next thing was to get out of the prison, which was accomplished with
the =id of & clothes line and a pole that hung from the rafters and used by
the family for the drying of clothes. The two were tied together and he left
them down, as he thousght, pretty nearly to the ground, but when he dropped he
found he had fallen some distance. He immediztely went to hls mother's cabin
and tzpped on the window. She opsned it. She sald she knew her boy's tap.

The conversation was a4 short one. The mother furnished her boy with some pone
and bagcon and, most important of all, was some onions which were used in rubbing
the soles of his feet, which were without stockings or shoes, so that the blood
hounds that would be put on his trail could not scent him, He then hurried to

a field about & half-miles awy where there were several large haystacks., Climbing
to the top of one of them he made & nest in which he located himself in such a
way that he could watch the movements of those searching for him without being
8611,

The nex% mornipg there was a stirring time on the Van Meteer plantation.
In the afternoon the dealer came for his slave, but he was non est. The mext
morning a slave hunter with three blood hounds arrived. The dogs were taken to
the plece where he had dropped from the window, They immediately started on
the track of the fugltive and went straight to his mother's cabin where they
circled sround and around her 1little home, but did not enter the cabin.

The mother was qusstioned closaly about Charlie, but she solemnly asserted,
"He was not in de house. I didn't see him." (She did not as it was night.)
Her cabin was searchsd thoroughly. The floor was taken up and every place
gearched where it was possible for him to be secreted, but the hounds could
fird no track leading from the place where he stood at the window. The onions
had gerved & zood purpose., The hounds were led around through the fields im
the hope that they would strike the trail, but in vein. The search lasted until
dark then the dogs were called in. Iz the morning the hunt was continued and
lasgsted for five dazys.

N |
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After waiting 10 days Charlie preparsd his feet with the remsining cniouns
and ventured down to the ground, then to his mother's cabin again. She had
saved all her allowance of food and gave it to him, saying, "Go." That was the
last time he heard his mother's voice. He struck for a "foot-log" across a
run that coursed through ths meadow, When he reached the middle of the "foot-
log" he dropped in%o the run. Walking down four miles he came to the ereek,
and still keeping in the water traveled 12 miles that night. When it commsnced
to get light he came to an eddy in the creek whers there was drift-wood. Here
he secreted himgelf through the day among debris. The next night, still walking
in the midst of the stresm, he made but 10 miles. The third night brought him
to a river, which he bad to abandon as the water was deep. Coming to a fording
where there were & number of wagon tracks, he crossed it and tsking God's index
book (the north ster) passed into the forest. After that for a few days but
little progress was made. Being in the water in those low, swampy bottoms he
becane wealkt, The food his mother gave him was spoiled and he had to depend on
roasting ears, which wag not the bsst food for him in his present conditionm.

One day he secreted himself on a stesp hillside near a creek on an over-
henging rock. He could look down into the cabin of a little family that were
making ahome in the forest. His sufferings from hunger were intense. All day
he watched the movements 0f the man working on the opposite hillside. He could
gee his wife carry the food from the springhouse to the kitchen. At last she
blew the horn to summon her husband to supper. Charlie took in the situation.
He believed he could get the food before the man arrived. He started on & run
and got into the cabin, where he found the table spread. C(Crasping an uncuft loaf
of bread and some meat he started, meeting the wife coming in. She screamed
but he sgcaped with the food to the forest.

Many other interesting incidents could be related, but suffice 1t to say
that gt last be reached Indiana feotsore, disheartened, almost naked and nearly
starved. But he had failed in bringing or even seeing his beloved. -

Charlie was & played-out "nigger" for gome weeks after his return. He was
digappointed and became despondent. I advised him repeatedly to move on, not
stopping until safe in Cenada. I said to him that he would be moved so far
south that he would have ne chance for escape, t0 which he replied that he would
never be kidonaspped; that l.e would rather die than be taken back, for he knsw
whai that memnt; he would die in his own defense. But he, with others, was
captured and sold to & planter in the extreme south. The incidents and
circumgtances of the kidnapping will be given in our next chapter.

ATslken Down South." Three Slaves Kidnapped Along Twolick Creek. The Sheriff
Assieta the Slave-Catchers to Do the Work in the Dead Hours of the Night--The
Derkies Malke a Brave Fight--The Cruel Treatment Exclites Feeling All Over ths

Coonty.

In & previous chapter I gave an account of Chaerlie's daring and fooligh
trip back to the Van Meteer plantation after the girl he had left behind; of
his cupture and mirsculous escupe, &and of his sick and tired-out condition when
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he returned to his cebin home on the banks of Twolick., Had it not been for
the kind nursing of the late John McGuire and his family it is doubtful if

he wonld have recovered. A few years ago, in speaking of Charlieis con-
dition upon hig return, Mr. Mcluire said, "For some time I did not think he
would pull through, bu% having a vigorous constlifution and youth in his favor,
he bagan to pick up, although hs had not regained his former heaslth eand
activity when he was recaptured."

This retreat for refugees attracted considerable attention. The young
pecple of the neighborhood would gather there in the evenings %o listen to
the darlkics relate storks about their experiences and slavery, accounts of
their trauvels when on board ths underground railroad, and to listen to their
negrg melodies accompuanied by the tambourine and bones. There was no attempt
at conceslment. Every person in the neighborhood kumew they were escapsd
glaves. A few days before they were kidnapped two other slaves came to the
cabin and were resting there.

Une evening during our Seplember court eight slave-catchers came to
Indiana and put up &t the Indiana House. The time selected for their opera-
‘tion was’'a favorable one, for Indiane wes at that time a quiet inland town
and eighi strangers ridirg into it would have atiracted the attention of
the members of the anti-slavery party, for many of them expected that the.
man-huntsrs would be after the slaves, but coming at a public time when &
aumber of persons came to the county seat, they were not observed or their
migsion suspected. Sheriff Ralston enguged Andrew Shank, Robert Fleming
and Daniel Rhine, znd after midnight the sheriff with his three aids znd
. the eight slavecatchers sturied for the lititle cabin. They left at different

pericds so asg not to attract the attention of the eitizens of Indiena. They
were = pretty formidable psrty--12 in all, and well armed--as they passed
the home of the late Wm, Hamilton, one and one-half miles northeast of Indiana.
Mr, Hazmilton was wekened by the tramping of the horses' feet. He arose,
looked out snd saw them. Iie supposed they were kidnappers, which prowved
only too true, but was powerless to prevent the success of their errand.
The particulars of their capture will now be given 1o the reader as related
to me by cre of the sheriff's aides 19 years after the eventful night.

"Weo scattered ag wse went out 80 we would not attract attention, but
kkept so close together that we could hear & pistol shot, which was the
gignal sg-esd upon te clese up if we were attacked by friends of the slaves.
Qur ride out was without incident. When we got to the creek our plans were
fully matured., Some one of the slavecatchers planned the attuck. He said
he understood the habifs of the 'niggers’' and that they were sound slespers
Just before daylight and more easily scared at that early morning hour than
at any other f(ime. The plan was that we would break in on them just before
day with & rush and overpower them, then we would run no risk as they would
be so badly scared they would give up without a fight.®

“Hie plans were all carried out. We found a good—-sized log that
reguired four men to handle it. The leader walked before and the men carried
the log cloge after. The leader carefully tried the door but it was fastered
securely. A dog ingide let out a fierce growl, but one push with the heavy
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log with such s force behind it drove the door in and i% fell to the floor.

The man who carried the durk lantern did not get in as prompily as he shoulid

and two of the five escaped., Bui the leadser was mistaken when he sald they

would not fight, for thay fousht like tigers. There were 10 of us--we had

left two to watch the horses. Befors reaching the cabin the leader asgked us

each to cut = club and not to use pistols or knives as "pistols are dangesraous s
and if we have 2 muss ws nmight shoot some of our friends. If we unse a knife

we might make 2 wound that would be fatal or st lemast a long time he2ling on

a darkie, but you can club them over the hesd and there will be no danger; if

you do knotk them giiff they will come around all right."

But we 10 had &ll we could do with the three and I was glad when we had
them all tied =nd on ths horges. I never want snother job like that. Sheriff
Ralston made o heir-breadth escape. Charlie Brown ran in on him, tripped him

, Wrested his club from him, and drew it up to strike. I thought it was
all over with the sheriff{ when one of the southerners gave an under stroke wiih
hig club, arresting the fatel blow. Another slave-catcher struck him a fear—-
ful blow on the head, knocking him ingensible. Before he regained conscious-
ness they had him gsecurely bound.

"Qurret Harris was & powerful men and fought with the stremgth of.a liom.
We bhad the advantege of him iv the suddenness of the attack. We pounced wpon

him while he was gtill lying on the floor, attempting to tie him before he
could get on hig fest. (ne lsrge man zat down on hig breast and tried to

ksep him down while two ofhers would tie him, but by supsrhuman exertion he
threw the man off snd fought and crawled to the door, then springing up he got
free =nd escaped into the woods.

"The two slaves that arrived & few days before didn't show as much fight
and were more easily capfured. If they had shown as much fight as Charlie we
would bave had a harder time of it. As it was breaking day and the slave-
holders were afraid that the two darkies that had got eaway would alarm their
friends and there would be an uprising of the people that would be troublesome
for them they hastily took their departure, making for the pike and striking
it near Nolo."

Anthony Hollingsworth wes s small man, but very active and daring. During
the melee he climbed a ladder that ran close up to the roof and pushing aside
the clapboards got outside and lay down on the roof between the ridgepoles
that held the roofing to its place. After walting until he thought it wasa
gafs he dropped to the ground and fearing to go into the cabin ran without any
clothing on but his undsrgarment to the farm of Widow Chspman and climbed a
tree, hiding ia its branches. Waiting until the members of the Chapman family
had arisea he called "Help! helpi" Mrs. Chapman started toward the sound =nd
affer walking some distence called. "Where are you? Who are you and what is
the matter?” The voice replied, "lissus, it's Anthony. Ise up de tree, but
don't come any uneaver, Hissus, Ise got no klose on," and then he %0ld her the
story of the kidnepping. Mrs. Chapman sent word to John McGuire, informing
him of what had happened and of Anthony's condition. Mr. McGuire was scon on
hends with scme clothinz for the scared man. He afterwards said that Anthony
wne a dark negro, but he was so scared that he had a purple color. Shortly
after this Acthony Hollingsworth put himself under Victoria'!s protection.
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After sscaping from the slave-caichers Garret Harris went to live with &
friend below Pittsburg who had several colored men employed, remaining there
in safety until Fresident Lincoln's proclamation made him & freeman.

Poor Charlie was taken back and sold further south, All trace of hi
wes lost aolfar as his angi—slavary friends knew, alghough S%erriff Halstgn

sald Pablicly one day that if the abolitionistis were as much interested in
Charlie as they professed to be and would raise $1,500 he would get him for

them, end that he (Relston) would give a&s much money &s any other man to bring
him back, Uhe money was not ralised.

¢ excitement in Indiana afier the kidrapping of the slaves in Green
township was most intense. The citizens held meetings in different parts of
the county to give expression of their disapprobetion of this inhuman act.

The foliowing notice we find in one of the Indiana papers dated October
22, 184%: 4

"The people without respect $o periy, sre to hold a meeting in the Court
House 1o rezd and hear the "zppeal" of Cassins M. Clay to Kentucky, to America,
and to the work, on Tuesday evening, the 28th inst., at candlelight. Also it
hag been gaid that the celebrated negro screape in Green township is to pass
in review before the meeting."®

Wo also Tind the same issue of this paper contalning the proceedings of
a2 meeting held in Washington township:

PUBLIC MEETING

At a large and respectabls mesting of the citizens of Washington and the
adjoining townships of Indians county, on the 17th inst., in School Houss
No. 2, the intention of the meeting h2ving been made known aftsr calling the
housa to order, the following officers were appointed.

JAMES SHORT was elected Prasident.
John Lowman and Peter Kinfter were chosen Vice Presidents.

Isaac Kinter and Samuel I.. Couch were appointed Secretaries.
The following resolutions were then offered and adopted.

1., Regolved, That we believe that our Laws have been trampled upon in
carrying off colorsd persons in the dead hours of the night without any legal
process.

2. FEesolved, That we consider it a disgrace to Indiana county, that the
high sgheriff was engaged in the case referred to.

3. Besolved, That we as Whigs, and Democrats, belleve it is our duty
to ses that our laws are observed in behalf of all men,

L, Pesolved, That we view with deep regret the high banded crime, which
bas been committed within our county, of late of kidnapping and carrying
awey thres colorad persong, by some of our citizens in direct violation of
cur laws.

5. Resolved, That # 1s the duty of those 1n authority to call speedily
the offenders to an account, thet the honour of our law, which has been so
shamefully Sraupled upon mey be restored.
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6. Resolved, That the proceedings be signed by the officers and published
in the I ina Reglster, and sl) the paper friendly %o the cause of Jusitice
and humanity
JAMES SHORT, Pres't
John Lowman )yjee pres'ts.
Peter Kinter )
Isaac Kinter Re 3
y : ocretaries
Samuel L, Couch }° K

The young msn of Indisna formed a glse club and gave expression to their
sentiments In song. They would frequently parade the strests at might singing.
The following is one of the songs they usged: .

"§fhen I can read my title clear,
To mansions in the sky"
I'11l bid defisnce to the law,
And make the negroes fly;
If prowling wolves return again
And offer me a job,
I'11l start off in the clouds of night
With fndy, Dan, or Bob.

And if the negroes come again,
I will receive a bounty,

I'l]l let the slaves and others know
That I will rule the county.

To catch the slave you know I'm brave,
You’'ll always find me handy

And any time when I want help
I'1l call on Bob and Andy.

Thig is the way by night or day
That I intend to figure,

And for the cash I will play smash
On every straggling "nigser.v

Poor helpless negro now look out
And from the county stay,

¥or if you venture to ccme here
You will be taken away.

Mind what I say and stay away,’
For it is plainly seen.
Tou'!ll fare no better than the three
Who were kidnapped in Green;
Kidnapping, Oh! how honorable,
To make our brothren slaves!
And those who in the work engage
Are worse than thicves and knaves.
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All Sluves Escaped Huniers and Blood Hounds Cleverly Foiled. A Colored Woma:
Prampad from Virginia to Indiana with Her Babe in Her Arms--Secret Room
%hich Hid Many Slaves in a Home slong the Susquehamna River--QOther Iuci-
dants of Slavery Days.

-

In this chapter I will give a few incidents connected with the underground
railvey in Indiesns and Clearfield counties. You will remember that in the
preface chapier mention was made of that kind-hearted Irish-man, George Aicheson,
whose home was slong the Susquehanns, & few miles below Cherrytree, James
Dowler, Esq., of Burnghids, kindly furnishes the following brief sketch of the
1ife of Mr. Aicheson as well as a description of the secret chamber in his
residence which was vsed when the escaping slaves were closely pursued by their
masters, which occurred freguently in that neighborhood. Some of the 0ld citizens
remember well the baying of the bloodhounds as they would scent along the benks
of the river and Cush creek., But when the slaves once reached this reireat they
ware safe. Mr. Atcheson out-generaled the slavehunters every time. He had a
gpecial delight in thwarting them in all their movemenis. In sgpeaking of some
close pursuits {0 a friend he remarked, "I am not monareh of all I survey but
I am master of this situation andl defy the slave-catchers once the slaves are
under ny care." Mr. Dowler says:

“Gsorge Atcheson came from County Leitrim, Ireland, when a young man on
account of the oppressive laws of the couniry, to seek more freedom. He married
in Center county end about thse yesar 1820 came over the mountains to the Susque~
hanoe with wife and child, or children, to make a home. He settled where ncw
inclodes Burngide borough.

"He wag = large, bony man, very plain-spoken, sometimes even to roughness,
but was very kind-hearted. Hs was one of the earlliest abolitionists and always
in hig prayers prayed for the poor bendmsn. He was & member of the Methodist
Episcopal church but did not long remain in a church that allowed slave-holders
in its fellowship, and joined the Wesleyan Methodist church, which was mors
anti-glavery than the former at that tims, remaining in it until his death,
in 1862, having realized the wish of his heart--the abolition of slavery.

“pbout the year 1845 Mr. Atcheson built a fine house on the side hill,
near his first residence, A secret apartment for runaway slaves was built im
it which was rot discovered during nearly 40 years' occupancy by different
families. James M. Morray, who once lived near Indiana, lived some time in
it, and David F, Swith for muny years occupied it with a large family and meny
hired men engeged in lumbering.

"The house was built as two houses, the end of the one to the side of
the other, and & story lower, The upper house had a wide hall at one end and
gbtairway. Amut four feet wide was taken off the stalr landing the whole width
of the hall snd stailrs, 8§ x 10 feet. The made the secret room about § x 10 feet.
The only entrance from the inside was a small recess about half way up the
room with a fzlse beck. It looked like a place for a clock or books. On the
gide of the house Jjust over the roof of the lower house was a small four-light
window, If closely pursued the runaways could get out at this little window
to the voof of the lower house and from the back porch into the back yard. IV
was only a fow feet from there tc the opposite side where there was & sieep,
wooded hill.
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"James Parks, of Indians county, built the house. Hs told his son, Dr. Parks,
of Marion Center, the purpose for which it was built. He also told W. T. Mahaffey,
of Chsrrytres. :

f“Runaways were freguently brought by the late Hom. A. A. Barker, the father
of Judge Barker, to Cherryiree, smd Mr. Samble brought them on to Atcheson. He
usually sent them up to Cush creek with a hunter as guide. One lot was ssnt
down the river to the Weaver farm, where & negro family®lived, as they were
closely pursvsd, and from there up Bear run. Robert McCreery, of Mahonin, and
Samuel Rarnk wers other conducitors. The latter was seen more than once escorting
fugitive glavesy.

ny few yeurs after the secret room was discovered Hon. A. A. Barker visited
me. Learaing of the dlecovery and being much interested we went up to see it.
As co-morkers, he and Mr. Atcheson were well acquainted and he had been at the
Atcheson home fregquently.

"ihan tha EKansas trouble commenced and squatter sovereignty came up to
be decided, Mr. Atcheson went %o Kensas and bought land. He then sent his
gon, Willlam, =2nd son-in-law, Joseph Iovelace, out there as settlers to wvote
for freedom. He must have spent thousands of dollars in his zeal for freedom."

Major Samuel Thompson, of Bast Mshoning Township, was the first regular
gecretary of the anti-glavery society of Indiana county. BHis son, Hugh S.
Thompaon, firs ingurance agent at this plece, relates an incident of his child-
hood days of four men and one woman with & babe in her arms (all escaping
slaves)emlling at his parents’ home, After receiving aid and directions for
their journsy they passed on to the next station, which was likely John Ewing‘s.
A few days later while at play on the public road near his home two strange
men on horseback with whips in their hands passed by and inquired of the lad
Hugh if any black peoples had passed by and he, being too young to understand the
purpose of thelr inguiry, straighiway told them urhesitetingly all be knew
about the escaping slaves; fortunately, however, they were too far away to be
overtaken by the slavehunters. But when the father heard that his son, Hugh,
had unknowingly been imparting information the lad had to listen to such a
reprimand thut he never afterwards hed the least disposition to give pointers
to slave-hunters. He never forgot that lesson on the subject of human slavery.

The writer remembers well the circumstances connected with the escape of
the slaves 50 which Mr. Thompson refers. It was in the fall months of 1848,
after the conviction of Dr. Bobert Mitchell in the circuit court of the United
States for western Penngylvenis, Van Meteer ws. Mitchell. These were dark and
dangerous timss for the members of the underground railrpad company who were
owners of reanl estate for fsar of conviction in the couxts for '"alding and
harboring slaveg.®

The advence agents informed us of the coming of the four men andone woman
with 2 bebe and they were closely pursued. Tired and hungry they arrived the
following night about 10 o'clock. This is the same woman referred to in the
introductory chepter, "who carried her babe in her arms from Virginia.” They
ware fed and securely pul away, reating until the following night. About
12 ofclock the train moved but not untlil the track-walker from the first
gtation north reported back "all right." The night was dark end raining, The
darkness was incressed by an occasional flash of lightning after which for
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some time it would be impossible to discern objects arcund you. The train
meved silently om, making good tims until we reached the next station whers,
wpon & gigmal given by the conductor, snother conductor and rear guard

emerged from the woods. The train halted and then occurred a scene that can
nsver be effaced from the writer's memory. The aged conductor from Indiens
tpid, "Friends, come near to me." When the slaves had gathered eround him,
forming & circle, he gaid, "Do you believe in God?" Ore of the number replied,
"fes messa, I do, Ise a membsr ob de Baptist church," to which he said, "I

am glad you are. We have done a2ll for you we can snd now I want tc commit

you to the care of Him who can kesp you securely and who will deliver you.

Now, boys, falke off your bats.” The old man stood in the little cirecle with
his head uncovered, and by reason of his age the top of his head was without
sny covering and the lightening lighted the scene and you could see the rain
a2 it fall vpon him, He plead with the heavenly Father to protect these poor,
escaping slaves—"Hide them behind & cloud so their pursuers cannot find them."
At the close of this importunats prayer he shook hands with each one, giving
to sach en encouraging word. 7o the mother he said, " Bs of good cheer. The
Lord will be specielly near to you," then tenderly laying his hand on the

head of the baby,"Christ lowves the little ones," and turning to the newly arrived
conductor, “"The Iord keap. Haste, march." The train moved silently on. The

lightaing flashed forth in all its splendor, giving us the last view of the
dissppearing. form of the rearguard, We hastily retrace our steps homs.

Shortly after the above occurence three slaves escaped from a family in
Virginia. The alave-catichers followsd them closely but lost track of them in
Somerset county, not far from Johnstown. They searched in wvain. Failing to
find any clus, they hurried orn to Indians, expecting to find them here. But
their friends in Somerset county had them securely secreted and kept them
nearly & weelk, For several days the slavebunters gsarched the neighborhood,
vigilisntly then left, as was supposed, but they returned one evening and from
some remarks dropped by them and overheard by ex-Sheriff Taylor (generally
known as "Uncle Jim" Taylor) he was led to believe the "boys" were near or in
Indians, A8 soon as "Uncle Jimmny" could get away from them without arousing
sugpicion, which was &t a late hour in the night, he went tao the houss of »
Joseph R. Smith, whom he waked and informed of what was going on.” Mr. Smith
did not kunow that the fugitives were on hands at that time but he lost no
time in telling a membsr of the underground railroad what he had learned.

The threes zlaves had landed the night before and were hid in Caldwell's
woods, now the James Gompers farm. It was thought best not to try to mowe
them that night as arrangements had been made for the following night's train.
Ths next day Hunter Charles Sleysmen, of whom mention has been made, spent
the day in huniing squirrels on Caldwsll's hill. The three men were taken
over to Wmn. Caldwell's barn, on the pike just east of Indiana, after dark,
placed in his foddsring room, covered loosely with hay, and told to sleep
until they were called for. The friend who placed them there was not aware
that Mr, Caldwell had talten one of his horses and gone several miles inte the
country on businsss. Heturning lats that night before the friend returned for
the fugitives he put his horse into the stable and went to the fodderingz room
for some hay. Gathering up an armful he discovered the body of a man. He
supposed it “o be some one in a drunken slumber and gkve him a wigorous kick.
When three largs colored men arcose it was a question which was alarmed the most
-~the daridez or Mr. Caldwell. The negroes made for the ocutside and just at
that moment tha friend called for them, giving the bird call, which they
recognized, and were hurried scross the plke to get on board their train.
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One of thewatchers remainsd in ambush for goms time and he says that
it could not have been more then 10 minutes until the slave-catchers rode
up to the Cealdwell mansion., Going into the house they sald they were afier
the darkieas that wers secrefed on his pi"emi-ses. He replied that there were
none secreted about the plece to his knowledge and "] want you to understand
I e not one of those aboliticnists,” but they would not beliseve him and
would gearch the premises. "Well," he said, "you can do as you wigh to
about that but if you find sny niggers I do not know anything about them.m
They did not search the homnse but went to the barn, Mr. (Caldwell accompanying
them, and ssarched diligently but falled to find "their boys." Mr. Caldwell
semarked t0 a friend the next day, "I kept them hunting as long ms I could for
I kmew they wouldn't find them in the barn and that gawve the darkies mors time
%0 get away."” Mr. Caldwsll was the father of the late Dr. James G. Caldwell,
of this place. :

It was = commection that was close but the train made its next statiom
all right end the second night after that they wers in the custody of Conductor
feorgas Atechason. The ghrough trip was made successfully, landing in Ganada.

Fight for Freedom How Penngylvanians went to the aid of fugitive slaves.
Man-hunters wers folled. By the neat work of an Indiana County Judge.
Astory of slavery Geys taken from the Pitisburg Dispatch February 13, 1g98.

One evening of April 18U5, young Bob Mitchell and several companions sat
on ths steps of the old academy, the temple of learning at whose alier bowed
the ancestors of the presgent geperation of people at Indiana, Pa.

As the boys, mome of them yet out of their ieens, sat there in the gathering
dugk, talking sbout their sweethearis, three flgures approached them, coming
up the Blairsville road.

One was of medivom helght, heavy and having & strongly-built frame. A
gecond was small of siature, thin and wiry. The faces of both were ehony
black. The third stcocod a king among men. More then six feet in height,
broad shouldered, deep chested, straight 28 an arrow, a splendid physique,
with hair se straight as any man who ever trod the earth, and the only mark
of the negre blood in his veins was the tell-tale hue of the octorooa.

With the elsgant esase and self—posé.ession of a polished gentleman the
latter addressed the boys, desiring to be directed to the office of fhe
editor of the Clarion Freedom, Mr, James Moorhead.

Aid for the Fugitives

Bob Mitchell then hied himsgelf home to tell the news of the arrival cof
thres fugitives. His father, Dr. Robert Mitchell, at once sought the office
of the little anti-slavery paper. Dr. Mitchell, James Moorhead, James Hemilteon,
William Banla and a few others were in heartiy sympathy with the anti-slevery
causge.

It was decided to let the fugltives remaln in the office all night and %o
taks them to Dr. Mitchell's farm, nine miles east of town, in the mormning.
This plan was followed, the doctor sending directions o his temant on
hig farm, John Shields, to allow the negroes tooccupy a little cabin on the
premiges and to furnish them with bedding, cooking utersils and other
necessaries and to find work for them to do on the farm. P

The men continved to make the cabin their headquariers all summer, while
they worked from day to day for the neighbors on the adjoining farms.
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dathony Hollingeworth, the small one, secured a job on the farm of
James Slmpszon, near Homer, and worked there for some time. One day, whilse
working in & field nsar the public road, he was surprised and horrified when
a rough hand was placed on his srm. T00 well he knew what had happened, and
all fhe horrors of the whipping post, the rack and torture crowded before
his excited brain with lightning rapidity.

Van Metre, master of the slaves, with two companions, Cunningham and
Tilden, had tracked the runaways, and by mere accident had discoversed
Anthony in this place.

The party came to Indiana and secured accomodations for the night at
the Indisna House. Thig hotel was then owned and run by David Ralston, ths
Sheriff of the county and a strong pro-slavery man.

The news that gne of the runaways had been captured and was locked in &
room at the Indians House spread like wildfire over the town. People gathered
in excited groups in the strests. Ominous threais rose above the mingled
voices of the crowd, Cries of "Down with the man-bunter!" pierced the ear.
he whole tcwn poured its populace into Philadelphia strest. The crowd was
fast becomirz a mob, and cries of "Tear the house down over his heed and set
the men free!" were heard.

Fugitives Given their Liberty : ,

The 1ittle band of abolition fathers quickly congregated in a secret
placs to confer. They fully realigzed that unless Anthony could be rescued
from hig ceptors all three of the fugitives would be taken back to Virginis
to meget a norrible fate. William Benks, a redoubtable 0ld lawyer, counseled
the protection of ths law. Acting on the suggestion, Dr. Mitchell was to
apply for a writ of habeas corpug. Willlam Banks was to present the petition
and was Lo raise the point that no svidence had been produced to prove that
the ingtitution of glavery existed in Virginia., Hence Anthony Hollingsworth
could not be claimed as the personal property of Garrett Van Metre. The
time &ppoinied for the hearing of the application for the writ was the
following morning. Dr. Mitchell then went into the crowd, and promiging
thew that the law would protect the negro, succeeded in persuading them to
digperss.

The next mowyning as Judge Thomas White took his place to hear the case,
& steady sizeam of people poured in through the Court House doors. On ths
bench Judge Vhite eat with the dignity of a Caesar. Within the bar on oms
gide were Hullingsworth, in the custody of the Sheriff, and Van Metre, with
hig friends. On the other William Banks and Dr. Mitchell were well flanked
by their co-laborers inthe anti-slavery work. William Banks presented the
petition snd after his opponent bad been heard from raised his point. After
carefully going over the case the Judge granted the petition. Then turning
t0 Devid BEslston he commanded, #Sheriff, release that man from custody." Then
old Jimmie Hamilton cried oul, "Shout, the Lord bids you shout, he is saved,”
and a deafening voar went up from the crowded room, as cheer after cheer was
given, while men threw their huts in the air and women waved their veils and
handksrchiefs.

On the steops of the old Court House stood the boys, Alex and Dick Whits,
Bob Mitchell and & score of others. As the Sheriff appeared with Anthony a



great shout went up, and the boys grabbed the little fellow and carried
him over their heads. Young Mitchell mountved his horse, Anthony was behind
him in & trice, and was set down at the cabln door.

Finding himself foliled by the superior wit and wisdome of the Judge and
lawyers of the Indiana county courts, Van Metre made no further attempt at
thet time %o look for his lost property.

The gummsyr wors on, and & mors industrious, well-behaved, happy set of
laborers than the three colored msn could not be found anywhere. Jared
Harris end Charles Brown were always %o be found at night &t the cabin; and
meny were the tales they told of their old life on fthe plantation.,

Brown bDecame a general favorite. Although but 19 yesrs of age, his
history mas full of thrilling infersst. 0Of the most daring disposition and
possessed of splendid courage, the fellow seemed born of the stuff that
conquers worids. He belonged to Van Metre, but on the sve of his escape
he had been sold to & slave demler for $2,000.

Ag Brady and Van Meire sat on the weranda of the latter's handesome
ragidence Charlie was called up for inspection. When they had counted
his points of excellence and demerits his hands and feet were tied with
rope, and he was placed in a smoke~house and locked in., With his hands tied
behind bim he rubbed the rope over the liade of an 0ld ax. Then he freed
ig feat. With ons great blow of the ax he shattered the door to atomeg, and
bounded evay over the mountains side like a hunted stag.

After hiding in the mountzing for several days, he was joined by the '
two friends with whom he came to Indiana,

The kindnesses which these men met with and the drop of liberiy they
tasted during their short stay in Indiana county served to vivify the borrors
of the slavery they bhad left, and they became imbued with a strong desire to
return to the plantation %o tell their relatives what a glorious thing this
liberty was and to help them to sedure it.

Charlie Brown longed to Tree his mother., Possessing to an unusual
degree native force, daring and courage, he decided to refturn to the planta-
tion to persusmde her to escepe.

Dr. Mitchell tried %o dissuade him, showing him plainly the risk to¢ his
own life. D2ut to no awail. Accordingly, one night in Avgust, after a long
discussion on the sudject, he was once again a guest for the night at Dr. Mit-
chell'!'stown house at Indiana,

Once More a Slave

in the morning, baving, as he hoped, disguised his birth and condition
in a white ghirt, standiang collar, swallowtailed coat and stove-pipe hat of
the doctor's, he started for Virginia.

In two day's time he had cleared Penngylvanis s0ll and wag traveling the
turnpike eight miles south of Cumberland. The Baltimore and Ohio Bailroad
was then in process of construction. Brown was challenged by a laborer on
the road to show hies paagsport, He guickly replied, "I am a frees man and need
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no pﬂ33;0¢d.” He was seized and thrown into ths Cumberland jail. 7The confine-
mant was torture %o h,u and at the end of two weeks he gave the name of his
paster, Van Metre came t0 Cumberland and delivered Brown to Brady, who took
bim %o his own home, tied his hands, put chains on his feet, and locked him

in the garret to slesp.

¥or a time he lay where he fell when thrust intc the garret, Despair at
the hopeles:nesg of his conditicn, remorgs over the failure of his attempt
to rescue his mother, and a8 rapidly increasing, bitter hatred toward his
captors swept in rapid succession through his dizzy brain. However, he was
vot of the digposition tc succumb without an effort. As his eyes became
cuastomed to the partial darkneas he began to 1nvestigate his quarters with
ihp hope of finding some means of escape.

By rare chance hzs found an old file on the floor, and he soon filed the
chaing from hig feet. Further investigation produced some strips of cotion
from old quilting frames stowed away. These he tied together, fastened to
the window frame in the gabls and let himself down to the ground, cutting
the flesh on his hands to the bone by being compelled to hold fast to the
string.

Surpriging to say, he quietiy reiurned to the planfation. For three
weeks he went about among the negro cabins, telling of the delightful place
where he had spsnt the summer, of the sweets of liberty and the little trouble
to secure 1%, if they would -only try. One day, while sitting in his mother'’s
cabin pleading with her to trust herself to his care and let him make her free,
he saw through the open door 10 men spproach the cabin over the turnpike.
Fearing discovery, Charlis Jumped throush the opposite window, and swift ag an
arrow ghot for the mountains sgain.

Encountered Great Hardshipe

This time meture favcred him but 1ittle in his wanderings. He was uharmed
and could procure no game. He was obliged to live mainly on greem corn.

The dews were falling one September evening as Dr, Mitchell and young Bob
drove slowly home from the farm. Peering through the twilight gloom they
beheld the tall, attenutated form, the large, shining, sunken eyes of a starved
men, Charlie Brown had returned,

The retrsat at the cebin had long been known to the commnity about Indiana,
gs no attempt was made %o conceal it. The place was, in fact, one of the
stations of the famous rovnte krown as the underground railway, over which
thovzands of fugitives found their way to Canada and freedom.

On the srrival of two newcomers, sbout the time of Chsrlie's retura, it
is thcuﬁht gome Horthern aympathizers becameg actlve in producing information
for the benefit of the deserted slavesholders.,

At any rate, one night during September court, eight mounted menm arrived
Lt the Indizna House. AY any other time such an occurrence would have excited
curiogity. PBut during court week there was such a consiant stream of people
coming to town on horseback that no particilar notice was taken of this. About
midnight, when the town was wrapped in slumber, these men, accompanied by
Sheriff Ralston and two dsputies sterted out the pike in the direction of the
cabin, As they pessed Jimmie Hamiltom's place the 0ld man heard them talking
and kmew they were afier the negroes.
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Back to Virginia

Stoppingz on & hill above the cazbin ths party cut themselvea each a stount
kickory club. It wes not yet daybreak. The day before the farmers hsd ¢ut
their corn. Anthony Hollingsworth had come over from Simpson’s fto stay all
night with his friends, There were five fugitives in all, the two newcomers
and our thres old acguaintancses.

Hollingsworth, who was a light sleeper, was awakened by a gleam of light
shining through a crack betwezn the logs. FEre he could arouse the cilars
the door was broken open snd the entire posse of 11 men were in the cabin.
The negroes had their lmives and pistols on the floor beside them, but in the
dariness woulc not find them. Jared Harris, a powerful fellow, threw man
efter man of” his chest, and worked his way on his back to the door. Then,
gpringing oul, he escaped into the woods and was shielded by the dense under-
growth., Anfthopy Hollingsworth, agile as a cat, sprang unnoticed up the ladder
into the loft, where he quickly concealed himself between the clapboards
of the loft floor. The two newcomers made little resistance, but Charles
Brown, true to his mature, fought like a demon. Oaths and curses of the
attacking pserty mingled with the shrieks and wails of the slaves, Horrible
threats of vangsance were hurled at the negro who now defended himself with
the fiercencss of a Humidian lion. Clash of steel and sharp reports of
revelvers scunded above the boarse roar of angry veices.

His Touching Farewell

At last overpowersd by the great odde against him, Brown was tied on a
horsge's back., His feet were bound together under the horse and his hands
were tied behind him. As they carried him off through the woods he called
back: "Tell Dr. Mitchell I have taated the sweets of liberty and I will never
live my life in slavery." Then bursting into =& loud, wild song, he disappeared
apong the trees.

Anthony and Jared proceeded at once to Canada, and for meny years wers
faithful citizens in the town of Windsor, opposite Detroit.

Shortly after this occurrence sult was brough by Garrett Van Metre, of
Hardy county, Va., against Dr. Robert Mitchell, of Indiana county, Pa., >
harboring & fugitive named Jared, the property of Van Metre. The case wasg -
tried in the United States Circuit Court at Pittsburg, Judge Grier presiding.
He was & violent pro-slavery men, and his charge to the jury is ome of the
most remarianle documents in the portrayal of bitter, persomal prejudice
on the peges of court history. Dr. Mitchell was convicted, and a part of
the megnificent pine forest in which the slaves had found shelter was sold
under the Sheriff's bammer to defray the $10,000 suit.

A letter from A. B. Hollingsworth dated October 12, 1962

Gentlemen. . . I now the time to address you with afew lines that Sam well

end I hope that this may find you all the injoyling the same I have kiu laying
of to write this lomg time but it was harde work fer me to git atit. I would
like to know how all the 0ld frindses are Mr. Simpson and Mr. Morhead and all
the good folksa ob that county are and seen me all the . . alout the trubbel
Vepmetter and Simpson had and the war, Pleas to tel me about the Dimon Mills
and all . . to the folks in that part of the county tel all the folks that if
ths war is zsttled the way that I would like that I hope to see them all agaio
80 good by fer thepresant. I remain yours truley A. B. Hollingsworth
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When a2ll joy =nd gladdness the summons came and cloged the earthly
existence this morming of Mrs., Margasret Burnbam Mitchell, wife of Robert
Mitchell, of North Sixth Street after a sojurn here of 91 years and five
months.

She was born in Broad Top, Zuntingdon county, July 24, 1824, being the
deughter of Charles Chester and Susan Stern Burnham. Her father migrated to
Gorsica, Clarion county, where she spent her youth. On the 17th of February,
1862, she was married to Robert Mitchell, of Mitchells Mills, Indiana county
and where thsy lived a number of years, About thirty years ago they located
in Indiana. She becams a member of the Methodist Episcopal curch at the early
age of 17 and duving her long and useful life was a faithful and congistent
Chrigtian,

Her dezth being due to 0ld age, it was often remarked by her friends how
gently and peacefully she passed away. She was a resl daughter of the war
of 1812, mss her father was & soldier and her grandfather was captain of a3
company in that war.

Mrs. Mitchell leaves her sged husband, Robert Mitchell and an only daughter,
Miss Florence Jana Mitchell and these gsisters snd brothers: Mrs. T. W. Long,
of Ambrose, Indisns county; Mrs. Mirs Walters, of Brookville, Pa.; Mrs. R. Stan-
ward, of Port land, Ore.; and Richard Burnham, of Hudson, Ohio. -

The fuzeral services will be held at the Mitchell home, Monday afterncon,
December 27, by the Rev. Dr. Bemnett W. Hutchingon pastor, of t.he Methodist
Episcopal church.

%S0 the multitude goes, like the flower of the wood
That withers away to let others succeed:

So the multitude comes, even those we behold,
To repeat the tale that has often been told."

Rovert Mitchell Called by Death One of Indlana's Wemlthiest Residents and
Public Spirited Citizens Lays Down Life at Age of 90 years.

Mr. Robert Mitchell, ome of our oldest, most prominent snd useful citizens,
died at his home on North Sixth strest, Sabbath, Jamuary 30th, at 7:00 a.m.
aged about 90 years.

Dobert Kitchell and his twin brother, Matthew, sons of Dr. Jiobert Mitchell
and Mra. Jene Clark Mitchell were born in Indiana, Pa., Nov, 10, 1826. Matthew
tdied when twenty-four years of ags. There were elevern children in the family
and caly two survive,,Miass Jennie Mitchell and Mr. William C. Mitchell, who
resides in ths old homestead on Phila. streset,

Dr. Mitchell, the father, was born in Cumberland Co., Pa., in 1787, and
attended schools and read medicine with Dr. Msgreehon, then a prominent
phygician of Wheeling, W. Va. After graduating in the medical department of
the Jefferson Medical College, Fniladelphia, he cams in Indiapa in 1811 and
began & succsssful caresr in his profession. He was active in the anti-slavery
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causs, and ! 1pau many Tun-asay slaves along the "ondexground railrosd." He
disd April 14, 1862, agsd seventy-five years, and his widow Mrs. Jane Clark
Mitchell, dz,a September 7, 1890.

Robert Mitchsll, Jr., was educated in the public schools and the Indians

adeny. When about seventeen years of age, he and his dbrother Matthew, were
g: aen charge of their fether'gstore and mills at Diamondville. After the
death of Matthew, Robert continued in charge and later became owner of
considerable property in that vicinity and was extensively engaged in the
Inmber businsss.

On February 5, 1862, he was married to Miss Margaret Burnham, of Stratton-
ville, Clarion County, and resided at Diamondville wntil sbout thirty-five
years ago when he retired from active business, and removed to Indianas, where
he bag since resided. Mrs. Mitchell, who proved herself indeed a helpmeet
and comfort, dled December 24, 1915, One daughter, Miss Flora Jane Mitchell,
survives then.

Mr. Mitchell took an active pert with his father, Dr, Mitchell, in the
enti~-alavery cause, a2nd delighted to narrate the very interesting reminis-
cences of those trying timss. He was possessed of wigorous mental faculties
and was o great reader and kepbthimgelf informed as to current events and
financial affairs, to the last. In busipess, he was conservative and success-
fol. For many years be had besen on the Board of Directors of the Farmers
Banlke of Indisne, snd attendsd & mesting shortly before his death. For a tima
he was President of the bank. His business Judgment and counsel have been
very helpful to hig =ssociates.

In religion, Mr, Mitchell was originally s Covenanter, but after coming
0o Indians he united with the First U. Pregbyterian church and for many years
had been & devoted member and a regular attendant,

in a gquiet way he had helped many people wWhen in need, and hed contributed
to many institutions, among them “he Indisna Y.M.C.A. His early friendliness
to the colored race, impressed his whole life and it is doubtful if he ever
refused to help & church or school devoted to improvement of that race.

His death has broken another of the not many links comnecting this time
ith the early part of the last century. Few are permitted to enjoy so long
23 he had, He bud been & kind hugsband and father, a true friend, a
citigen and neighbor, & successful business man, and this community is
& bBetter for his having 1ived so long.
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Fuoneral services will be held at bhis late home on Tuesday, February lst,
at 2:00 p.m. by Bev. Morrow, his pastor, assisted by Rev. Dr. Brownlee, for
many years his former pastor, acd by Rev. Hutchinson, psstor of the M.E.
chuxch.
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Letter from Robert Mitchell Trenton, Tennesses
July 17th, 1862

Dear "Spactarina" Happy to sse you looking sa pleasantly this fine

evening. You sre indeed in a huppy humor, for you meet me with such a
pleasant smile. TYour sppearance is rather ancient(for I thought at first
that it was my grandmother; excuse me) but, I suppose your costume is of

the "latest Parig fashion,” and when the style gets out west, it will not
look g0 edd. I do sdmire your bonnet, and the collar is a perfect beauty,

%0 say nothing sbout the sleeves; but that buckle "takes my eyes." I lnow
you will make a present of it to "my wife," when I marry, won't you? Dearest
Grandma, you mast excuse the criticisms of a country boy, and not be offended,
for you know he bas been out in the "western -wilds" so long, he has almost
forgotten zcod bshavior.

And now, Desr Snactarina, I must write a few lines to wife Jennie. The
long-looked~for arrived today. I had "almost" despaired of seeing you, but,
as the old saying is, "better late than never.” I thought of as I opened the
large envelcpe. 1 was not as much surprised as you would think when I
beheld "Snactarina Grimpen" ingiead of yourself, for I had seen such "tricks”
before and I knew there must be "two sides tc the picture.” But I can't tell
who the Yencient? lady is. 7Ths eyes, hair, mouth and chin led me to believe
it wes yourcelf, and I believe it is, ien't it?7 And I don't belileve any cne
else could "amile so pleasingly.” TYour picture is @& splendid one, and nothing
bubt the orizinal can compare with it. Snaciarina's is a good one, alse, and
if T was ==z angry as I could be, it would put one in a good humor to look
at her.

Doc. Stewart spent Sunday and Monday with me. He was on his way to
Cornith, and has about recoversad, save his deafness. (He is entirely deaf
in one emnr.) He wrote to me that he expected to visit Pa. this Summer, but
I don't thick he can do so now. We will both come and bake dinner some fine
day, next winter. ¥rank was in Lowell, Mess. a few days age. Was unwell,
but I &m expecting him bome every day. I suppose he is there on some "wild-
goose" chase.

Now, ag you have fulfilled your part of the "contract® nothing remains
but for me %o fill mine. But, be half s0 patient as I hzve besn, and you
will see it by and by. MThere is no artist here, and I will have to wait
avhile. But if you are in a burry, I will send "my measure" {0 Aunt Doris
and beve scme artist to get up one.

)

I believe we are under marching o;-d‘é‘?rs for Washington, but I thiak our

services will also bs needed near here very soon.

Ivery Szbbath the churches are crowded with scldiers, and if we should
remsain here this Summer, I believe the lst will become quite moral. TFor
this is the heppiest camp I have ever been in. There is a good deal of
coffee and sugar shipped north from here.

There iz no news, and I will close. for I am expecting letters from
you almost every mail. Give my best respects to all, ard a kiss for
thos "gmiling lips™ of "Snactarina®

Yours truly, Robt.

~dvr
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Elwood, Kansas, Nov. 6, 1801

Migss Jennis Mitchell--
Dear friend-- -
Your kind and welcomed letter was received at Tipton, Mo. some time
since, apd, after a long unsxcusable delay, I am seated to anaswer it.

I have been in Kansas for a month, recruiting for our regiment. Such
& lonely place I never was in before. Everybhody, almost, have "gone 1o the
wara.” There is scarcely any persons left to gather the abundant crops which
have been reised this semson. And we think Ksnsas is a poor place to look
for soldiers, now. OQur young atate has furnished twelve regiments for the
"Holy cause' from a population of less than 100,000 persons.

I wrote to you laest from Chillicothe. We zoon moved from there to
Tipton, on the Pacific Railroad, where our commend is now stationed. From
there myself, with several others, were sent to Kansas, where we have been
ever since., I heve traveled through Doniphan, Brown, and Nemaha counties
often enjoying myself wory much. At Capioma, I boarded zbout a week at a
hotel, which constituted the town. The landlord owns a farm adjoining, and
one day he invited all the "belles and beaux" of the neighborhood to a ;
"hugking perty.” The "beaux" husking corn through the day, and the "belles"
preparing the supper. In the evening they commsenced dancing, and danced
nesrly all night. It was a real old-fashioned affair, and we had a most
excellent time. There wers not many girls there, but the few made it up
by beauty. However, that is a "general fault" in Kansas. Dr. Stewart's
regiment has been at St. Joe for two months, and I see him often. But he
1s now gone to Illinois recruiting. He doesn’t like being kept away up
here where there is no fighting.

Col Mitchell's 2nd Eensze regiment, was "mustered out" at Leavenworth
2 month or %wo ago, but he is successfully reorganizing it again.

I do not think your brothsr John had he lived would have discarded
his principles of non-resistence until it was known tc be a war of extermina-
tion to the cause of Slavery. I think it will ultimately end with the
destruction of Slavsry, and I think our Statesmen should bring the war to
that issue at omce. ¥For we are fighting ageinst a rebellion which 1s nothing
tut Slavery. And whsn the rebellion is put down Slavery is at end. What
& pity our genersels ure not more like Fremont in thelr proclamations: "The
property of the rebels shall be confiscated and their slaves shall be free.”
Sending the slaves back to them is like sending recrults to their army.
Lane, Montgomery and Jennison, although not liked much by Missourians, would
cruch the hidious revolt in Missourl socner than any other men. Theilr very
names are =g moch as an army to the rebelas. Jennigon names his camps after
John Brown, Coppic eic.

We had & very heavy rain yesterday. The family is well. PFrank is with
the regiment, and was well at last accounts. Did Miss Annie write to Jeff
Davig? If she did, Frank need not fear Sisisgh bullets any more. Ask her
if ghe won't write to Mr. Davis not to put bullets in any of the guns for




the Lesighers all shoot very carelessly, and it sesms as though they shoot
right at the Ysojer boys" sometimes. Bro., Joe was not in the battle at
Lexington, but was in the fight at Blue Mills. Many of my acquaintances were
in the Lexington battle, two of them of the laté "Fres Democrat® office.

I sent you a little paper, "The First Kansas,"™ from Chillicothe. We were to
publish it resularly, bul were ordered away when the 2nd number was in type.

I think our regiment will be sent back to Kansas soon.

Getting to the epd of the last page, makes me think of our "inelinetions
for long lettersY--and, although I have said so little on so muchpeper, I
will bring it to a close.

~ Give my respeéts to all the family. Tell Willie I have not received
hig letier, and am looking for it. Please write as often as convenient.

Your friend, Robt. Tracy

Chillicothe, Mo., Oct. 11, 1861
Miss Jennie Mitchell:<- 7

I was requested by Eums to write to some of you concerning Capt. McFarland
and baing as much acquainted with you as with any other of the famlly. I
direct to you. g

Capt. McFarland of Co. D. from Leavenworth ‘was seriously wounded in the
head, but is now in St. Louis, and nearly well. He is of Irish descent.
Your cousin, Col. Robt. Mitchell, 2nd Kensas, was wWounded, alsc, while
bravely leading his men in to the fisld. He is about well, and in Ksnsas.
Qur Colonel was wounded soon after. Our Orderly Sargeent, Frank H. Drennlng,
v2g from your town. He was wounded badly in the wrist and in the knee.
Brother Frank was wounded serionsly in the breast, but he returned from
Springfield yesterday, slmost well.

" We, the Kensas First, left Leavenworth about the middle of Jume to ° .
"invede the sacréd soil of Missouri,” or to catch her trmitorous Governor; I
don't know which. We had a long und wearisome march, and at the end of six
weeks, we camped near Springfield. We printed & Iittle pgper—-tha Journal
at Clinton, Henry Co., from a Lesish office.

After marching and countermarching about Springfield for some time (often
night and dsy) we found the snemy--and at 6 a.m. we began the battle. The
Kangas lst was very eager to push forward, for fear the rabels would run,
z8 of old, We halted for a time, but in a few minutes an order came fir
our regiment, and we went in double-guick, many singing, "Let the world wag
as it will, 1'11l be gay and happy still." We got in a wvery hot fire, and:
remained there until the enemy retired at 11}. It-was very hard to fight
g0 long without water, and meny suffered badly, especially the wounded, who
were lying thick around us. Qur regiment lost more than any other in the
field. The dead were left, unburied, on the field--the wounded left at
Soringfield. .
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Bat few of our company escaped without being struck with spurt bullets,
buck shot or grapes. It was = hard fought battle, but owing to their numbers,
we.had to retreat fwm Springfield to save our train, etc. and we had another
herd march to Rolla, without even a blanket to sleep on, and no tents. We were
not allowed to unload the wagoms. e

On our march from Leavenworth, we passed through towns entirely deserted
by ths men--—some in the rebel army and some hid out in the bushes. The
women from the country would all come %o the towns as thelr husbands and
brothers would flee from their homes. The towns were full of women, and some
were crying, often asking us not to shoot a husband or brother who was in the
Southern army, some would cheer us and others almost curse us. (Expect they
thought it if they didn't mutter oaths.)

Dr. 8. G. Stewart is 2 Lieutensnt in the Illinois 16th. He passed here this
morning on his way to St. Joseph. He was well and in good spirits. Our friend,
D. W. Wilder, of the Isavenworth Conservative, was to see us at Hannibal. "

We expected an attack at this point, a few nights ago, from 5,000 rebels,
but we suppcsed they were called back to Iexington.

Well, thig letter is longer than I expected to write, but owing to the
fact that I like to receive long letters myself I forgot what I was doing--
g0 let that be my excuse. I would always be glad to hear from our friends
in Penngylvania,

Give my respects to the family.

Your friend, Robt. Tracy

. On our first page this week, will be found an article from the pen of
Mrs. Jazne Grey Swisshelm. In the year 1845 four fugitive slaves took up their
residence in a vacant cabin on the farm of Dr. R. Mitchel, sbout three miles
from this place. They stayed there for some length of time, but finally their
whereabouts was discovered by = party of slave-hunters, and they were captured
and taken back to their respective masters. A suit was instituted against
r, Mitchel for violating the law which forbade the harboring or the aiding
in eny way of runaway slaves. He was brought to trial, found guilty end
gentenced to pay & fine of $5,000 and costs. This was the first and last
conviction under the infemous fugitive slave law which ever took place in this
county, thouzh after that at least a thousand hunted fugitive slaves passed
through this section, on what was known as the underground railroad. (Contempla-
ting, &t this time, the ruin and wreck which the slave owners of the South
at tempted te bring vpon the country, and their signal failure, and the down-
fall of their "divine institution," makés ons regret that the good old doctor -
had not lived to see the great change that has taken place in public sentiment,
Thovgh plenty of persons yet reside in our midst who mssisted st and instigated
the triel of the Doctor, it would be very difficult to find one now who
would care %o acknowlsdge it. The infamy of slavery in this free country has
passed away, and there are none at the North who desire its re-establishment.
It was & sin against God, and the nation has suffered for it.



Judge Brier and Dr, Robsrt Mitchell

We take from lest week's Independent a few extracts from an article contri-
buted to that peper by Mrs. Jane Grey Swisshelm. Many of our readers are
familiar with the circumstances reluting to Judge Grier and Dr. Mitchell, and
will read with interest the sentiments of & woman who has proven herself so loyal
t0 the interests of freecdom and humanity:

Judge Grier, in presbyteries and aynods, with all his power and eloguence
and once, &t least, with tears, defended slavery as a divine institution and
denounced itsg opponents as pestilent fellows and criminals by the laws of God
and men. On the bench he was wont, by his rulings, to strain the law beyond
its utmost limits %o aid the slave~caticher, and punish those who aided the
fugitive in hisflight.

About the yar '46 (I have not the officisl record at hand) Dr. Robert
Mitchell, of Indians Co., Pa-~{but here let me pause and do obeisance to
the memory of one of the Lord's ann¢inted The grand, good men who s0 nobly
~atood between the blood-hound and his prey, as mild and merry as if unconscious
of his dxméer but strong in the christian faith to endure unto the end, and
"do for the humblest of the race what he would have done for his master,
He, too, was a member of the Presbyterian Church, and to such as him is she
indebted for the honor that is left to her ) Well, about the year of
grace 1846 Dr., Robert Mitchell was brought up before his honor Judge Grier, to
answer for the crime of harboring and concealing fugitive slaves. The Judge
ruled every point of law, and charged heavily against him; but the jury were
unable to agree, and were discharged. The United States marshal boasted that
next time he would summon & jury that would put Mitchell through; and, after
hig labors were completed renewed the boast, saying he had secured a Jury to suit
his purpose. ) : W

-Woen the case was called up the sscond time, the defense agked a post-

ponement , on the ground that the jury had been packed, and produced evidence
of the violent partisan character and expressed opinions of its members, and
the open boasts of the marshal that they had been selscted to secure a
conviction. Of the witnesses to these facts stout John.Atcheaon of Clearfield,
was the principal; and Judge Grier so far forgot the proprieties of the bench
. as to brow-beat and show open contempt for these witnesses. at times ask:ng.

.suwerc1l1au>ly. "gho is the John Atcheson?™ .

) He forced Ir. Mitchell to trisl by this Jury, with sworn testimony before
him of its having been packed; and throughout the trial impressed the
spectators by his zealous sympathy with the prosecution. The defense
claimed that Dr., Mitchell had noi concealed the men; that they had come to
Indians in a most deplorable condition, and inquired for his house, one
gvening; had been directed to it and seen %0 enter; that next morning the :
Doctor had besen up and down the stireet with them, buying them shoes and other
articles of clothing; that next day they had left town, a.nd'when captured,
gome weeks afterward, were in a waste cabin on Dr. Mitchell s land, eight
miles from his residence; that the cabin was near and in open view of a
public road in an open field and was often used as a resting place by chance
travelers without knowledge of the owner; that the men had been living openly
in this cabin, and going out to work where they could find employment; that



- that they had been—wi.e. fugitive slaves; that he had harbored them as guch,

no one kn them to be fugitive slaves; thet thers was no evidence that

Ir. Mitchell had any such knowledge, and common law would require that should
have noticed thet they were runsway slaves before he could be held responsible
for harboring them as such; that a contrary ruling would make it dangerous

to show eny kindness to any unknown person, as he might be a fugitive, and
any chance =ct of benevolence thus rendéred the actor liable to heavy fines,
imprisonment, and the payment of the money value of the object of his charity.

To this the prosecution responded that there were no public roads in
Indiepa Covnty, in s0 far as the court kmew; that all that was known to the
court of that county was that it was z place which every year sent up a
tremendous Whig majority, and was, per consequences, & benighted regiomn, fit
for treason, sirategem, and spoils.

To show that Dr. Mitchell knew that the men were living in his cabin, they -
produced & note taken from the pocket of one of them who had beem captured
after a desperate resistance. It was directed to a men who lived on Dr. Mitchell's
farm adjoiring the cabin, and ran thug: "Kill a sheep and give Jerry half.
(Signed) Robert Mitchell.® . : ‘

" It was readily admitted that this was no evidence that Robert Mitchell
knew that Jerry was a slave, nefariously intent on robbing his master of his
divine rights; for defendant would have given a half ghesp or whole. one, wool
snd all, to eny poor man whom he believed to stand greatly in need of it. Being
known es an abolitionist, living in a county which sent in Whig ma jorities, it
- was safe to agsume that he had known these msn, to be those the law now claimed

although only two of the seven had ever been in his house, and then with as
moch publicity as would huve attended the visit of any pauper, asking alme;
that they occupied the waste cabin by his direction, and that he intended to
conceal them. Judge Grier, in his charge, sustained this mass of assumption,
distinctly charged the jury that the lay did not require that any notice should
be given of the-vondition of a slave; Dut took it for granted that the person -
relisving bis wants must know his legal status, and that, although no coacesl-
ment appearsd, that too must be taken for granted. The jury did their duty
like Democrate; and Dr. Mltchell was fined $5,000 and costs, which were

$5 O()O more - g . ’ R S L

On - the 'i:.op of Chestnut Ridge, in the free air of the "Blue Al'legha.nies,"
two miles from Zogonia, our mountain home, lies a tract of the finest pine
timber land my eyes ever beheld, which was sold by the sheriff to satisfy
this judgmeni, rendsred by a Presbyterian elder against a Fresbyterian '
brother, for feeding the hungry and clothing the mked! Men and brethren,
please tread lightly over the ashes of Rome! Has the Inquisition, in its
horrors, anything more horrible than the tortures by which one of these
black martyrs died, after having been surprised in his little cabin-loft,
in the sleep which followed a day of honest toil, overpowered by brute
force and carried to the land of chains t0 be scourged to death, in pressence
of the old mother whoss memory had held him to his mative land, with the hops
that he might return to Virginia, and make her the companion of his flight
%o a free home on the other side of the St. Lawrence? Presbyterians, please

talce up the remains of your Judge Griers, and bury them as quietly as you cane-
Iet lawyers carry the palls and Chrigtisae pray, in time, that they may come

to repentance; but do not hold ‘them up to the public as examples of pisty, and
representatives of that sturdy old faith which has dared and done so much to
win civil and religious liberty for the race.




To show that Judse Grier was not actusted by mistaken convictions of aduty,
it is Dut necessary to state that be had so intimidated the Pittsburg Press by
eriminal prosecutions for libel that when he rendered this decision in Dr. Mitchell's
cagse, thers was but one editor there who dared to criticize it wifavorably. And
of that one an apolesy was demanded, on pain of prosecution. The apology wes
made and raised a laugh at the expense of the Judge. He did not care to face
ridicule, and did not enter the suit which the editor courted. Several years
after that time Jemes McMasters, of Pittsburg, was cited before his Honor to
answer the cherge of harboring a fugitive. 'The editor had known the fugitive, as
& leborer, in Mr, McMaster's employ, and had not known that he was a slave, and
suggested that his testimony might be useful. Mr. McMasters replied that his
testimony could be of no use, as there would be no atitempt to prove that he did
not koow the man's legal status, since, under the decision in Dr. Mitchell's cass,
no evidence of any such knowledge was required; but said he would consuli his
lawyer.--0On doing so, the lawyer eagerly caught at the idea of producing this
witness, saying it was no difference what he knew of the case, or whether anything,
snd exclaimed: "Bring him into court, and we*ll win the case; for Grier is more
afraid of that paper than he is of the " gentleman in back,

The case came on, the witness was produced. Judge Grier changed front, was
respectful to the defense and charged the jury that the defendantwas eutitled to
an scquital, inasmuch as the prosecution had not shown that he had notice that the .
man he hed employed was a fugitive slave.

The %wo contrary rulings, within five years, by the same man, are matters
of official rewmrd. The behind-the-gcenes part of the transaction I heard from
Mr. McMagters himself, who is still living in Pittsburg, and would be quite
willing that the world should know how he escaped the legul penalty of giving
aid and comfort to a stranger. The lawyer may have been mistaeken in thinking
that fear of eriticism in an obscure weskly paper, whose editor boldly proclaimed
the power and purpose to publish during any legel term of imprisonment in the
county jail, should reverss a legal decision affecting the rights and duties of
every citigzen; but those most intimately acquainted with the case beliseved
. this to be the moving cause of the judicial repeal of the judicial enactment

under which Dr. Mitchell!s home in Indiana and hundreds of acres of his iand

were sold by the sheriff. }

It is lamentalily true that Judge Grier was no worse than thousands off
others; but I respectfully suggest that all that cless of men should be quistly
end decently buried three days after death, and the world spared any emblazonry
of their Christian virtues and examples. If we must have latter-day saints, there
are Brigham Young and all his elders, ready to be canonized at a moment's warning.

dudge Grier by Mrs. Jeme 3rey Swisshelm

Mzny people believe that the faults of the dead should be buried with them, and
only their good deeds be held in remembrance. These will condemn any notice of .
the errors in the life now closed of the late Judge Grier; but to dismiss such a '
man from the Church Militant to the Church Triumphant with the highest letters of
credit is @ heavier blow at Christianity than Renan could strike; and, as a
member of one of the great Presbyterien family of churches, and one to whom
"the very dust of Zion is dear," I beg leuve 0 protest agsinst the ecclssiastical
verdict which a portion of the religious press has brought in on the camse of this
honorable elder in the Fresbyterian Church. I would not forget that their
endorsement of Judge Grier is not the first case in which they have placed the
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church they represent in a bad light; for it was these same organs who were
foremost in reading Messrs. Beecher, Frothingham, Colfex, and Tilton out of

the pale of Christianity for celebrating or sanctioning the marpiage of a person
previously divorced for cother cause than the one named by Chrisié, while the
preachers of their own denomination were in the habit of performing the cercmony
in such marriages without question or comment.

- Brigadier-(eneral Robert B. Mitchell

Geﬁeml Robert B. Mitchell, whose portrait we give on this page, is a

“native of Richland County, Ohio. A%t the age of nineteen he went to the

Mexican War, a private in the company of the present Jenaral Jeorge W. Morgan.
He served iventy-seven wonths and reached the rank of First Lieutant. After
bis return he completed hislaw studies with "Miller and Morgen" in Mount Vernon.
During his practice in the adjoining counties he subsequently married a daughter
of Hon. Henry St. John, of Tiffin.

In 1856 he went to Kensas. His home in Mansfield, Linn County. Im 1857

. and 1858 he represented the Free State party of that county in the Legislature.

In 1859, CGovernor Medary sppointed him Treasurer of the Territory. In 1860
he was appointed Adjutant-General by Governor Robinson. At the breaking out of

“the rebellion he volunteered as a private, raised a Company, was elected its

Captain, and afterward was unanimously elected Colonel of the "Kansas Second"

- by its officers. He led his regiment in the battle of Wilson's Creek, where -

he received four wounds, one of which proved almost fatal, His regiment hers
earned the title of the "Bloody Second,.™ et

As a compliment to him and his regiment, General Camcron ordered it to be
mounted at & time when he was dismounting cavalry. For services at Wilson's .
Creek Colonsl Mitchell was mads a Brigadier. He was assigned to command the 5
expedition to New Mexico, which, after the battle of Shilob, had to be sbandoned.
He then embarked with & brigade from Leavenworth to reinforce Generel Halleck.
Much of the time that he has been with Generals Halleck, Rosecraus, and Bnell
he has been commanding & division. He has beén in many small engagements. He
toolk an active and distinguished part in the battle of Perryville as commander

"of & division. He met John Morgan with his divieiocn at La.ncaster. Fentuclql,

and drove him out af ter a severe engagement

When \:263181‘&1 Rosecrans succeeded. ueneral Buell General Mitchell was placed
in command of Nashville. The post, in labor and responsiblity, is almost egual

~ %0 & Depurtment.

Death of Dr. Robert Mitchell, The Indisna Messenger, Indiane Pa., June 3, 1863.

Departed thisg life on the 14th ult,, Dr. Robert Mitchell, one of the
garly settlers of Indians, Pa., in the 77th year of his age. :

He was born of religious parents, in Cumberland co., in this state, and -
profited in early life by the ministry of the late Dr. Beron, of Pittsburg;
and having gone through a regular course of study in the medical profession,
he gettled in this place in the year 1811, where he had for a considerabls
time an extensive practice. He served for four or five years as a member of
the lLegislature from thig district, and was afterwards appointed associate
Judge of the court irn this county.



His religious principles received in early life brought forth the fruits of
righteousness., He made his first public profession of religion in the Presbyterian
- church of this place, and afterwards united with the Associate now the U.P., and
‘ continued & worthy snd exsmplary meumber through life. In his last illness he
suffered from no particular disease, but from a gradual decline of sirength. He
had a parelytic stroke about fifteen months before his death, from which he parti-
ally recoversed; but it seemed to have no bad effect upon his mind. His interest in
his family and the church sesmed rather to increase than to diminish. His life
ended with a calmness and serenity which must long be remembered by his family snd
gll Who witnessed the solemn change, We read in the scriptures, of a rest that
remaineth to. the people of Sod., Dr. M--—- seemed to go slowly and calmly unto it.

. , - Thirty-nine years ago he was united in marriage by the Rev. Dr. McElroy to

' Miss Jane Clark, of Pittsburgh. We had the pleasure of witnessing the service;
but our interest was of an inferior order to what we witnessed in the Iord's doings
in their separation. 2

The Dr. leaves hig partnmer in life with three sons and three daughters. A
fourth son, a young men of taulents, went to Kansas from love of liberty when that
state was in great tribulation, struggling ageinst oppression for its own freedom.
While there he came to his death through the hardships and exposures to which he
was subjected. . - , _ i -

Dr. M, hzd serious troubles and worries arigsing from his anti-slavery princi-
ples. In eaurly life, when a student of medicine; he had seen the cruelty and unright-
sousnesa of the slave system on its gctual operations., He therefore, in after days
: took an sctive part in behalf of those who were flying from bondage.-<He belisved
- in the word of Jod: that every yoke should be broken und that the oppressed should
. " go free. He lived to ses the work begun; and from his anxiety to hear of its ‘
progress from day to day, we have reason to suy that he desired to live to see it
finished. PRut he left this, with all other matters which pressed on hig spirits,
in the good hand of God, who will finigh the.work and do all things well.

"Death of John C. Mitchell," From the Elwood (Kansas) Free Press, 1860.

On Tuesday morning, March 13th, John C. Mitchell breather his last. He died
at the residence of Mr. John Tracy, in this town. The death of such a man merits
something more than & simple announcement. Mr. Mitchell possessed rare qualities
of heed snd heart, and he had led « life of blameless purity and manly courage.

John Mitchell was the son of Dr. Robert Mitchell of Indiana, Pa., and was -
born in 1832. Ir. Mitchell is & native of Virginia, and will be recollected by
many of our readers as having been prosecuted by JSerrit VanMeter, during President
Polk's administration, on a cherge of harboring and concealing fugitive slaves. The
suit was brought under the act of '93, before Judge Grier, and has become remarkable
. ’ from the partisan unscrupulousness with which it was pursued: Judge, Marshal and

Jury having done all in their power to comply with the demands of the siave drivers.

=S

We bave very few facts to relute in the history of John Mitchell. He thought
of everything but himself, and would converse on all other topics. What we know
about his history, we have either seen ourselves or learned from others. He was
educated at Oberlin, Ohio, having chosen that Institution in preference to all others
. because it was recognized by all that black men were entitled to the educational



L0.

privileges thaut are accorded to whites. He spent a year there in 1853. In '54
he became Principal of the Academy in his native town. 1In '55 he returned to Oberlin
and remained there till March, 56, when his eyes having given out, he was obliged to
g* vp up study. He came :I.mmediatr.ly tO Ka-nsas. coming throu@h Northern Missouri,

cere‘ i;%%lzl'nﬁft%ilg Lioy&hﬁailr an f&?& no%eco fe%rfals i ear%mc?pies
in Kangas. He setitled on a clsim nea.r Troy, in this county. He was often warned by

r0 slavery men to leave the county, but threats had no effect upon him. He remained
upon his claim until the first of May, when his health feiling, he went to wvisit his
uncle, Mr. Hobert McFarland, who was living near Lawrence. He was at Lawrence when

it was sacked, and shared in the dangers and toil of that troubled time. When the
people there were in a starving condition, he was one of the seventeen who started
for Leaveaworth with teams to get provisions. They were all captured by a2 pro-slavery
band under the lead of Fred. Emory. After marching eleven days, and sleeping during
the time on the open preirie, they were taken t0 Lecompton and imprisoned. During
this time John talked as freely as was his wont, and told all who asked him that he
was an Abolitionist. A violent Ruffian who now lives near here in Missouri, insisted
on having Mitchell hung, but his courage and openness saved his life, for these
quelities inspired respect even in that lawless party. They remsined in prison some
three weeks, end until released by a company under command of Gen. Lane. Mitchell
remsined some time in that vicinity, and bore a manly part in the struggles of the
Free State settlers. When he returned to this county, he found that his claim had
been jumped. He spent much time and used svery effort to regain the land he had
firgt taken up and settled on. HNotices were repeatedly serwsd on him that if he
returned to his e¢laim he would be shot-- But these did not deter him from going, and
going unarmed, for he never was frightened into carrying a revolver or a knife,
Contrary to the universal custom, Mitchell went unarmed. The title was contested at
Kickapoo. Hies opponents proved that they were pro-slavery men, and natives of Ala-
bams, and that Mitchell was an Abolitionist, and bhad been in Iane's army. This was
a strong point in all those cuses, end of course Mitchell lost his claim--One little
incident illustrative of his character may here be mentioned. One of Mitchell®s :
witnesses, a strong personal friend, if taken to Kickspoo, would have sworn to certailn
stutements confirming Mitchell's title, which the witness believed were true, but
John knmew to be erronecus. That witness was not taken to the Iand Office. John ]
Mitchell had spent a whole year in trying to secure a farm, but he would not have it
ir¥ iy must come by lying or any indirection. ;

We regre? that his own modesty and reticence have hidden from us many facts
in hieg life in Kansas, for his character is one that is the more admirad the meore
it is known, Those who were brought into intimute relations with Mitchell, had a
respect for him which was akin to devotion. The marked traits in the character of
Mitchell were independence, firmness and forgetfulness. of self. He was a firm
believer in the equal rlghts of men, and acted on the belief and adweated it, in
gpite Ofdlts disastrous effect on his own popularity. Those lines of Lowell were

is creed: .
] tThen to side with Truth is noble,
When we share her wretched crust,
Ere her cause bring fame and pront,
And 'tis prospercus to be just;
Then it is a brave mgn chooses,
¥hile the coward stands asids,
Doubting in his ebject spirit,
Till the Lord is crucified,
And the multitude make virtue,
Qf the faith they had denied.®






